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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcegises to small and mid-sized public agencies irf@alia and other western states.
Outsourcing enables these agencies to provide @ maithe of specialized services without havingnbaii and maintain the overhead
necessary to develop staffing in-house. We proaitieoad range of services to public agencies, diety

. Civil Engineering;

. Building and Safety Services;

. Geotechnical Engineering;

. Financial and Economic Consulting; and

. Disaster Preparedness and Homeland Security.

We operate our business through a netwbover 20 offices located throughout California atder western states and had a staff of
as of December 28, 2007 that includes licensedhergs and other professionals. We ranked 136 da@®top design firms iEngineering
New:-Record's2007 Design Survey. Our core clients are publimags in communities with populations ranging fré000 to 300,000
people. We believe communities of this size aresusgtved by large outsourcing companies that tefiacus on securing large federal and
state projects, as well as projects for the prigatgtor. We seek to establish close working ralatigps with our public agency clients and,
over time, to expand the breadth and depth ofehdces we provide to them.

While we currently serve communities thrieogt the country, our business is concentratediifa@nia and neighboring states. We
provide services to approximately 60% of the 4T@siand over 60% of the 58 counties in Califoriiee also serve special districts, school
districts and other public agencies.

We were founded over 40 years ago, andytodasist of a family of wholly owned companiesttbperate within the following areas:

. Engineering ServicesOur subsidiaries, Willdan, Arroyo Geotechnicalpkc Agency Resources and Willdan Resource
Solutions comprise our Engineering Services segnwitidan and Public Agency Resources provide eagiimg-related
services to public agencies. Arroyo Geotechnictdrefgeotechnical engineering services. WilldanoBese Solutions, a
subsidiary we formed in September 2007, providedremmental engineering and environmental relagzgiises to public and
private sector clients. For fiscal years 2007 ad@62 revenue for the Engineering Services segnepmésented 81.7% and
84.1% respectively, of our overall contract revenue

. Public Finance ServicesOur subsidiary, MuniFinancial, offers financialdaeconomic services to public agencies. For fiscal
years 2007 and 2006, contract revenue for the ®@&idance Services segment represented 16.1% an lrespectively, of
our overall contract revenue.

. Homeland Security ServiceOur subsidiary, American Homeland Solutions, isffeomeland security, disaster preparedness
and public safety consulting services. For fiseng 2007 and 2006, contract revenue for our Hordefcurity Services
segment represented 2.2% and 1.2% respectivebyradverall contract revenue.

In the first half of 2007, we made chantgesur executive and senior management team. Wistflke our former President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Biogs, resigned from his positions as PresidentGinidf Executive Officer as of
February 8, 2007.




Mr. Westfall continues to serve as Chairman. FailhgaMr. Westfall's resignation, Tracy Lenocker shas interim President and Chief
Executive Officer until April 2, 2007 when Thomas Brisbin was appointed President and Chief Exgeufifficer. Upon Mr. Brishin's
appointment, Mr. Lenocker resumed his duties orboard of directors, which he had resigned fromlevbérving as interim President and
Chief Executive Officer. On July 23, 2007, MalldicCamant, our former Chief Financial Officer, assdhthe role of Chief Operations
Officer and Kimberly D. Gant was appointed Chiafidicial Officer.

Our Markets

We provide engineering, public finance &ndeland security services to government agendiesbelieve the market for these
privatized governmental services is, and will béyeh by a number of factors, including:

. Population growth, which leads to a need for inseglbcapacity in government services and infrasiract
. Demand by constituents for a wider variety of sesi
. The creation of new municipalities and the growitisroaller communities, which creates the need tainthighly specialized

services without incurring the costs of hiring parmant staffing and the associated support strycture
. The deterioration of local infrastructures, espiécia aging areas; and

. Government funding programs, such as federal hardedacurity grants and various state legislatioat provide funds for
local communities to provide services to their ¢ibnents.

Engineering Services

Engineering services encompass a varietifsaiplines associated with the design and coastmu of public infrastructure
improvements. We expect demand for engineering@eto grow as continued population growth in foatia and other western states
places significant strain on the infrastructuréhiose areas, driving the need for both new infuastire and the rehabilitation of aging
structures. Federal, state and local governmenis tesponded to this growth in demand by increasiag funding of infrastructure related
activities, and voters in California and Arizonaseaecently passed sales tax increases to funspatation improvements.

Public Finance Services

Public agencies face an increasing burdeaise the necessary funding to build, improve mag¢htain infrastructure and to provide
services to their local communities. While tax mewes are a primary source of funding, in Califothiere are property tax and spending lii
that curtail the generation of these funds. Altéues include the issuance of tax-exempt securitfesformation of special financing districts
to assess property owners on a parcel basis f@sinficture and public improvements, such as assggglistricts and community facilities
districts (known as Mello-Roos districts in Califigx); the implementation of development impactgesgrams that require developers to bear
the cost of the impact of development on localasfructure; user fee programs that pass costs &dahg actual users of services;
optimization of utility rates; and special taxeseted by voters for specific purposes.

Public agencies frequently contract witlvate consultants to provide the advance studiesiage the processes and provide the
administration necessary to support these mett@aissultants have the expertise necessary to fograghcial financing districts and produce
an impact fee study used to develop a schedulewaldper fees. Privatized services are also utilteémplement the programs or
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revised rate schedules, and in the case of sfa@alcing districts, administer the districts thgbuthe life of the bonds. Consultants also
frequently provide the services necessary to comyily federal requirements for tax-exempt debthsag arbitrage rebate calculations and
continuing disclosure reports. Use of such servidiesvs public agencies to capitalize on innovapiublic finance techniques without
incurring the cost of developing in-house expertise

Homeland Security Services

After September 11, 2001, the need to ptateil infrastructure and implement additionatedty measures became a priority at all
levels of government. In addition to the threatasforism, Hurricanes Katrina and Rita highlightad vulnerability of our country's
infrastructure to natural disasters. These evdated an increased burden on local and regiondigagencies to be prepared to respond. In
addition to fire and safety personnel, agenciegaesible for the physical safety of infrastructetements, such as water and wastewater
systems, ports and airports, roads and highwaidgéds and dams, are under increased pressureparpr®dr natural and man-made disasters.
Accordingly, the federal government now considerslic works staff members to be "first respondéosSuch incidents and we believe that
agencies are allocating resources accordingly.

For fiscal year 2007, under the Departnoéiomeland Security Grant Program, or HSGP, thierfal government will provide
$1.7 billion to the states, which in turn will digise these funds to local law enforcement and @fgencies. The federal Department of
Homeland Security, or DHS, has designated 45 melitap areas throughout the country to receive atrhalf of the HSGP funds through a
program called the DHS Urban Area Security Initiatior UASI. Designated UASI metropolitan areadude five metropolitan areas in
California; the Phoenix, Arizona (Maricopa Countygtropolitan area; Denver, Colorado; and Las Velyasada. States and local
communities also are increasing budget funds fonignation and homeland security matters.

Our Services

We specialize in providing privatized sees to public agencies. Our core client base isposed of cities, counties, special districts,
other local and state agencies, and tribal goventsne

We are organized to profitably manage neuesmall to mid-size contracts at the same timigh @dr focus on local and regional
agencies, typical contracts can range from $5,0@%¢r $1,000,000 in contract revenue. Our tygicaject contract has a duration of less
than 12 months, although we have city servicesraot# that have been in effect for over 25 yeatPeécember 28, 2007, we had
approximately 3,400 open projects.

We offer services in three segments: Ergging Services, Public Finance Services, and Hamde&ecurity Services. The interfaces and
synergies among these segments are key elememts sfrategy. Management established these segimesesl upon the services provided,
the different marketing strategies associated thiése services and the specialized needs of #spective clients. The following table
presents, for the periods indicated, the approxmatcentage of our consolidated contract revetitibldable to each segment:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Engineering Service 81.7% 84.1% 84.6%
Public Finance Service 16.1% 14.7% 15.3%
Homeland Security Servici 2.2% 1.2% 0.1%

See Item 8 of Part Il, "Financial Staterseamtd Supplementary Data" for additional segmdotnmation.

3




Engineering Services

We provide a wide range of engineeringises/to the public sector. In general, contractefgineering services (as opposed to
construction contracts) are awarded by public aigsrwased primarily upon the qualifications of émgineering professional, rather than the
proposed fees. Many jobs are awarded without a ataddgroposal process, especially if an agency hasgstanding relationship with an
engineering professional with relevant expertissuBstantial percentage of our engineering relatad is for existing clients and represents
an extension of our long-term associations witimthe

We offer our clients a broad range of eagiing services, listed in the following table alescribed individually below:

City Engineering Structural Engineerin
Building and Safet Planning

Public Works and Infrastructure Desi Landscape Architectul
Construction Manageme Geotechnical Engineerir
Traffic Engineering Flood Control

Water and Wastewater Engineer Code Enforcemer

City Engineering. We specialize in providing engineering servilored to the unique needs of municipalitiegy Gngineering can
range from staffing an entire engineering departrt@®parrying out specific projects within a mupiglity, such as developing a pavement
management program or reviewing engineering plansetalf of a city. This is the core of our oridibasiness and was the first service
offered when we were founded.

Building and Safety. Our building and safety services can range fnoamaging and staffing an entire municipal builditegpartment to
providing specific outsourced services such as maiew and field inspections. Other aspects o tiscipline include performing
accessibility compliance and providing disastepowecy teams, energy compliance evaluations, pgroitessing and issuance, seismic
retrofitting programs and structural plan reviewamy of our building and safety services engagememtsvith municipalities and counties in
high growth areas where workloads exceed the cpafcin-house staff.

Public Works and Infrastructure Design.This sector constitutes our traditional engimegdesign function. Our engineers design
streets and highways, airport and transit facdjitfeeeway interchanges, high occupancy vehicledapavement reconstruction, and other
elements of city, county and state infrastructure.

Construction Management. We have developed construction and program gemant systems specifically devoted to our public
sector clients. We provide inspection servicesz@hwith full construction management and suppapeshding on the client's needs and the
scope of the specific project. Our construction ag@ment experience encompasses projects suckeets shridges, sewers and storm drains,
water systems, parks, pools and utilities.

Traffic Engineering. Our traffic engineering services involve segvas the contract city traffic engineer in commigsitas well as
performing design and traffic planning projectsdor clients. These services and projects inclied&ipg management studies, intersection
analyses and improvements, traffic impact repartsl, traffic signal and control systems.

Water and Wastewater EngineeringOur water and wastewater engineering servingade design and project management of public
water and wastewater facilities. Our core compeéésnioclude hydraulic modeling, master planning¢g studies and design and construction
services. Our design




experience includes reservoirs, pressure redutatigss, pump and lift stations, and pipeline aligamt studies, as well as water/wastewater
collection, distribution and treatment facilities.

Structural Engineering. Our structural engineering services includddeidesign, bridge evaluation and inspection, haghand
railroad bridge planning and design, highway irftartge design, railroad grade separation desigihgdseismic retrofitting, building design
and retrofit, sound wall and retaining wall designgd planning and design for bridge rehabilitaton replacement.

Planning. We offer services to planning agencies as asstommunity development/redevelopment departnvettig cities.
Typically, cities contract with us to relieve peakrkload situations or to fill vacant planning pgasis on an interim basis. In other instances,
we handle the entire planning function for smalhewly incorporated cities.

Landscape Architecture. Our services in the area of landscape architedéhclude design, planning, landscape manageamehtrban
forestry. Specific projects include park design amaster planning, bidding and construction docus)emater conservation plans, urban
beautification programs, landscape maintenance geanent, site planning and assessment district nesneaif.

Geotechnical Engineering. We provide geotechnical engineering servigeguding soil testing, slope stability evaluatioaarthquake
engineering, engineering geology and hydrogeol@¢g.have a licensed, full service geotechnical latmoy at our headquarters in Anaheim,
California, which offers an array of testing seescincluding the relatively new line of constroatimaterials testing and inspection.

Flood Control. We provide a complete analysis and projectiostarm flows for use in master drainage plansfandndividual storm
drain systems to reduce flooding in streets andcadijt properties.

Code Enforcement. We assist municipalities with the developmemt anplementation of neighborhood preservation ot and the
staffing of code enforcement personnel.

Selected Projects. Examples of typical ongoing projects we havéhimEngineering Services segment include:

. City of Maricopa, Arizona. The City of Maricopa was incorporated in OctoP@03 and we were hired in April 2004 to assist
with creating a development services departmenthfcity. This included continual staffing to resg to requests for buildir
plan review and inspection, counter services atdipworks plan review, as well as serving as thmmunity's designated
building official. After developing a number of stéards, procedures and processes which reliediemvour experience in
other cities, we successfully opened the doorkécity's first community development services dipent in July 2004. Since
then, we have logged over 10,000 hours of coutdéfirey, provided building plan review and permitiifor over 12,000
housing units and 100 commercial projects, andigeal/plan review for plats and infrastructure imgmments on over 200
subdivisions ranging in size from 150 to 2,000.IQ@sr relationship with the City of Maricopa hagparded to include the
preparation of the city's first General Plan, aredassisted with the development of code enforcepwities and procedures.
We have also been requested by the community ist @&sdbridge design, construction administratiowl ahrough our Public
Finance Services segment, in the city's annexéigoal analysis.

. Clark County, Nevada.In 1987, we were engaged by the Clark County,ddavDepartment of Building and Safety to provide
plan review services. In 1989, the Clark County &&pent of Public Works contracted with us to pdavieview services for
drainage studies. Since then, our contracts hage tenewed continuously and expanded to includewesf traffic studies
and




public improvement plans as well. At the inceptafrthese contracts, we provided these review sesvin an overflow, as-
needed basis, but the scope and quantity of serti@e grown over the past 20 years. In Clark Céaifiscal year 2006-2007,
we provided 680 engineering reviews for the Departhof Public Works and 1,893 reviews for the Dépant of Building
and Safety.

. City of La Canada Flintridge, California.In 1996, we began working as the prime consuf@amthe City of La Canada
Flintridge on its approximately $85 million projectconvert the city from individual septic systetos traditional sewer
collection system. Our ongoing services for thigjget include assessment district formation, engiing design, construction
management and inspection. To launch the projecpnmepared the sewer master plan, through whichityhevas divided into
four separate phases. Funding for the design amstremtion of improvements within each phase wasiged by the formatic
of assessment districts. Phases 1 and 2 are cangpldtthe construction of Phase 3 is near complé€Tioe city is currently
evaluating preliminary designs for Phase 4 andtcoction is expected to begin in early 2009.

. Colorado River Indian Tribes, Blue Water Casino &wkort. In February 2007, we contracted with the ColorRdeer Indian
community to review building plans and conduct exons for the reconstruction of a seven-year-286,000-square-foot
facility. The facility was originally constructeditivout the benefit of an inspection and has beagy#d with code-related
issues. Our staff has been integral in bringingpttogect into compliance with the adopted codeasngland specifications. We
will continue to assist the community with on-cadisignments for future commercial developments.

Public Finance Services

We acquired our public finance consultingibess in 1999 to supplement the services we offepublic sector clients. In general, we
supply expertise and support for the various fimagntechniques employed by public agencies to fieaheir operations and infrastructure.
We also support the mandated reporting and otlyglinements associated with these financings. Wiead@rovide underwriting or financial
advisory services for municipal securities.

Unlike our Engineering Services businessoften compete for business, at least initiaHyptigh a competitive bid process. However,
since many public sector financing instrumentshsagtax-exempt bonds, remain outstanding for \BDtgears, once we have established a
client relationship, the client tends to retairfarsas long as the financing remains in place. €avices in this segment include the following:

District Administration. We administer special districts on behalf dblpriagencies. The types of special districts adstaned include
community facilities districts (in California, MeiRoos districts), assessment districts, landsaapdighting districts, school facilities
improvement districts, water districts, benefitesssnent districts, fire suppression districts, launginess improvement districts. Our
administration services include calculating thewslitevy for each parcel in the district; billingarges directly or through a county tax roll;
preparing the annual Engineer's Report, budgetesmlutions; reporting on collections and payméaius; calculating prepayment quotes;
and providing financial analyses, modeling and tdgrecasting. From July 2007 to June 2008, weetip administer over 1,600 districts
on behalf of more than 230 public agencies, invgvin annual levy of more than 6.3 million pardk#t is expected to generate
approximately $637 million in public revenue.

The key to our District Administration sem@s is our proprietary software package, MuniM@&gisunicipal Administration &
Government Information Coordinator, which we depeld internally to redefine the way we administexcsal districts. MuniMagic® is a
database management program that maintains pateelahlculates special taxes, assessments, féeharges; manages payment tracking;
maintains bond-related information in a single tca@rocation; and provides reporting,
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financial modeling and analysis at multiple levedsletail. MuniMagic® offers a significant compéti advantage in an industry driven by
the ability to accurately process extremely largamities of data. MuniMagic® is also available lieensing by our existing clients. See "—
Intellectual Property” for a discussion of the tisang terms.

Financial Consulting Services. We perform economic analyses and financialgmtsjfor public agencies, including:

. Fee and rate studies, such as cost allocationestuger fee analysis, utility rate analysis, fisopact studies and developmi
fee studies;
. Special district formation, which involves the dgsidevelopment and initiation of community fa@ districts, school

facilities, improvement districts, assessment witsty landscape and lighting districts, benefieassent districts, business
improvement districts, fire suppression assessnamise-engineering;

. Facility financing plans;

. Economic impact analyses;

. The formation of new public entities, annexationd acorporations;

. Reassessment engineering for bond refunding; and

. Inf%af/t/r_lljlgture analysis both to evaluate the needghabilitation efforts, and for financial redog purposes, in association
with Willdan.

Federal Compliance ServicesWe offer federal compliance services to isseéraunicipal securities, which can be cities, teywn
school districts, housing authorities and otheitiestthat are eligible to issue tax-exempt semsitSpecifically, we provide arbitrage rebate
calculations and municipal disclosure services liedp issuers remain in compliance with federaltatipns. We provide these reports,
together with related compliance services suchoas lelections, temporary period yield restrictiescrow fund monitoring, rebate payments
and refund requests. In terms of continuing disgleservices, we both produce the required aneyalrts and disseminate those reports on
behalf of the issuers. We provide federal compkaservices to approximately 550 issuers in 38 statel the District of Columbia on more
than 1,600 bond issues totaling over $43 billiomimicipal debt.

Selected Projects. Examples of typical ongoing projects we havéhimPublic Finance Services segment include:

. Metropolitan Water District of Southern CaliforniaSince 2002, we have administered water standasgels for the
Metropolitan Water District of Southern Californ@, MWD. This involves the placement of standbyrglea onto the property
tax bills of parcel owners within the six-countgarserviced by MWD. We manage data for over 4.0aniparcels with over
3.3 million parcels, totaling $42.8 million in watgistrict revenue, levied on an annual basis.Q052 our contract with the
MWD was extended for an additional five years.

. City of Indio, California. In 1997, the City of Indio engaged us to admerisheir landscape and lighting districts. In April
2005, our services were expanded to include therastmation of their local improvement and commuridcilities districts, as
well as delinquency management and municipal disckservices. This agreement is in effect fopag ks the underlying
districts are active. Since 2005, our relationshiifh the city has expanded further to include assesnt engineering services, a
water rate study, and special district formatigkitrage rebate calculations and continuing disate reports have also been
contracted with us for a term of 30 years.




. City of Roseville, Californie Our association with the City of Roseville alsgghn in 1997, with the administration of
special financing districts. Since then, our adstiaition services have expanded to encompass 8&kfieancing districts,
with contracts that will remain in effect for asigpas the districts remain active. Delinquency ngangent and municipal
disclosure are included in these contracts. Welase provided the city with a number of consultsegvices, including two
fiscal impact analyses, an update to a publicifeslifee study, a fire facilities impact fee study animal control facilities fee
study, and arbitrage rebate services. The corfoaetrbitrage rebate services is open for the lnafethe underlying bonds.

Homeland Security Services

We provide homeland security and publi@satonsulting services to cities, counties andteel municipal service agencies such as
utility and water companies, as well as schoofidist, port and transportation authorities, tripalernments and large business enterprises
with a need for homeland security related serviéés staff our projects in this area with formerhigvel local and regional public safety
officers and focus on solutions tailored for loagencies and their personnel.

We entered this segment in fiscal year 2014 the formation of our subsidiary, American Heland Solutions, or AHS, and began
generating revenue in the second half of fiscat 28&5. Our services include:

Training Services. We design customized training courses for gleats of disaster, unusual occurrence and emsrgesigonses. In
this regard, we have developed and own severaliigatourses that meet or exceed the requirementhéd federal National Incident
Management System, or NIMS, training. These couassist clients in meeting their obligations topame their staff to utilize the NIMS. Our
courses have been approved by California’'s Comomissi Peace Officers Standards and Training, thiéo@aa Office of Emergency
Services and the Federal National Integration Gemtaining and Education Division, formerly the fz@tment of Homeland Security's
"Office of Grants and Training".

Emergency Operations Planning.We design, implement, review and evaluate punlid private agencies' emergency operations plans
including compliance and consistency with fedestdte and local laws and policies. Plans are tdloo respond to terrorism, intentional acts
of sabotage and natural disasters. We also praadenand and control and emergency response trdioiral types of unusual occurrences.

Terrorism and Threat Vulnerability Assesstae These assessments involve the developmentiofgsoand procedures to assess
threats and the vulnerability of local, region&hts and national infrastructures, including cityl @ounty buildings, ports and airports,
facilities, power supplies, water supplies, comroations networks and transportation systems.

Planning Evaluations and ExercisesWe conduct planning sessions and exercisésidimg those relating to weapons of mass
destruction, large events, mass casualty trangfortdisasters, terrorism incident response, nhtlisaster response and recovery, and civil
disorder events. We design these exercises foi-aggincy involvement and are fully compliant withM\g, the State Emergency
Management System for California, and the Natidtedponse Framework. Exercises are designed toatealnd test "first responders" and
support personnel, as well as elected officialsagehcy management.

Public Safety and Management ConsultingVe provide independent analyses, evaluatiodg@ommendations for enhancing the
performance of public safety agencies, such ag@alnd fire departments.
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Selected Projects. Examples of typical Homeland Security Servigagects include:

. NIMS Training SessionsWe conduct NIMS training sessions for law enfamneet, fire protection, building department and
public works personnel, and other "first respontdrs2007, representatives from over 500 publierages attended AHS
training courses.

. City of Norwalk, California. We are currently assisting the City of Norwalkiwan update of its emergency response plan
project includes executive course training, andettggment of a field operations guide for emergespgrations command and
emergency disaster response.

. City of Huntington Park, California. We conducted an analysis of the structure arettfieness of the police department in
the City of Huntington Park and offered recommeiutfest as to how the department could better sewedimmunity.

. City of Stanton, California. We conducted an analysis of the city's policiagtcact with the county sheriff's department for
cost effectiveness and service levels.

Competitive Strengths

Founded over 40 years ago, we have a wtbéished track record of providing a wide ranfjprivatized services to the public sector.
We have developed the experience base, professtafhhnd support technology and software necgseajuickly and effectively respond
the needs of our clients. We believe we have deeel@ reputation within our industry as problenverd across a broad range of client
issues. Some of our competitive strengths include:

Quality of Service. We pride ourselves on the quality of servic the provide to our clients. The work for which e@mpete is
awarded primarily based on the company's qualificat rather than the fees proposed. We belieuveotitaservice levels, experience and
expertise satisfy even the most rigorous qualificastandards. We have developed a strong repntticquality, based upon our depth of
experience, ability to attract quality professiea@ustomized technology and software that supporservices, local knowledge and the
expertise we possess across multiple disciplinesb®@lieve we are well-positioned to serve publzia@eclients due to our knowledge of the
unique reporting processes and operating proceddifasblic agencies, which differ substantiallyrfraéhe private sector. We believe our high
quality of service is a significant reason we catigeprovide services to over 60% of the cities andnties in California.

Broad range of services. Our focus on customer service has led us ttiragadly broaden the scope of the services we pievit
different stages in our 40-year history, as thedeed our public sector clients have evolved, weehdeveloped service capabilities
complementary to our core engineering businesfydirgy building and safety services, financial @mdnomic services, planning services,
geotechnical services, code enforcement serviagsnaost recently, disaster planning and homelandrég services. Further, because we
recognize that local public sector projects anddssoften cross departmental lines, we have desdltye ability to deliver multiple services
in a cohesive manner to better serve our clientconities as a whole.

Strategic locations in key marketsLocal agencies want professionals who undedstagir local needs. Therefore, we deliver our
services through a network of over 20 offices dispé throughout the western United States. Eacliobdffices is staffed with quality
professionals, including former management levélipisector employees, such as planners, enginespectors, and police and fire
department personnel. These professionals unddrtariocal and regional markets in which they wankaddition, we operate in some of
the fastest growing states, counties and citigkarcountry, including three of the five fastesiwging counties in the country (based on
number of residents added from July 2005 to JuB62OMaricopa County, Arizona; Clark County, Nevadad Riverside County, California.
Furthermore, seven of the top 10 fastest growitigscin the nation (with populations over

9




100,000) are located in California, Arizona and als, where we have significant operations. (Solwce: Census Bureau, Population
Division, June 2007).

Strong, long-term client relationships.We have developed strong relationships withpalnic agency clients, some of whom we have
worked with for over 25 years. The value of thesggtterm relationships is reflected in the recyrénvard of new projects, ongoing staffing
assignments, and long-term projects that requgb-tével supervision. We also seek to maintainecfpsrsonal relationships with public
agency decision-makers to strengthen our relatipashith them and the agencies with which they wavle frequently develop new client
relationships as our public agency contacts armpted or move to other agencies. Our strong cutiicommunity involvement and
leadership in key public agency organizations useiaes our customer focus and helps us cultivateeapand our client base.

Experienced, talented and motivated emgeye Our staff consists of seasoned professiondls avbroad array of specialties, and a
strong customer service orientation. Our corpocatiire places a high priority on investing in @@ople, including providing opportunities
for stock ownership to attract, motivate and retamprofessionals. Our executive officers haveaagrage of more than 23 years of
experience in or supporting the public sector, améverage of 6 years with our company.

Clients

Our clients primarily consist of cities,urties, redevelopment agencies, water districtaldistricts and universities, state agencies,
federal agencies, a variety of other special distrand agencies, and tribal governments. Ourdyplent is an agency serving a community
of 10,000 to 300,000 people. In fiscal year 200& served over 800 distinct clients. No individugmt accounted for over 3.5% of our
consolidated contract revenue in fiscal year 2@@r fiscal year 2007, each of our top eight cliemdsounted for between 1.6% and 3.5% of
our consolidated contract revenue. Our clientpaedominantly based in California, although we haaggor clients in both Arizona and
Nevada. For fiscal year 2007, services provideptadic agencies in California accounted for appmatgely 81% of our contract revent

Contract Structure

We provide our services under contractsglpase orders or retainer letters. The contractent@r into with our clients contain three
principal types of pricing provisions:

. Time-and-materials provisionmovide for reimbursement of costs and overhead alfee for labor based on the time expel
on a project multiplied by a negotiated hourlyihdl rate. The profitability achievable on a timalanaterials basis is driven by
billable headcount and cost control.

. Unit-based provisionszquire the delivery of specific units of work, Bugs arbitrage rebate calculations, dissemination o
municipal securities continuing disclosure repastshuilding plan checks, at an agreed price pér with the total payment
under the contract determined by the actual nurobenits performed.

. Fixed price provisionsequire all work under a contract to be performadaf specified lump sum, which may be subject to
adjustment if the scope of the project changestr@ots with fixed price provisions carry certailément risks, including risks
of losses from underestimating costs, delays ifepta@ompletion, problems with new technologiesgeincreases for
materials, and economic and other changes thatoeay over the contract period. Consequently, thétpbility, if any, of
fixed price contracts can vary substantially.
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The following table presents, for the pdsdndicated, the approximate percentage of outracnrevenue subject to each type of pricing
provision:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006
Time-anc-materials 5% 58%
Unit-basec 25% 28%
Fixed price 16% 14%
Total 10C% 10(%
[ ] [ ]

Under each of the different types of coctsaother than unit-based, we bill our clientsquically in accordance with the contract terms
based on costs incurred, on either an hourly-feéshm on a percentage of completion basis, aprject progresses. For unit-based
contracts, we bill our clients upon delivery of tentracted item or, in some cases, in advancelofaty.

Our contracts come up for renewal peridiGgnd at the time of renewal may be subject tegwtiation, which could impact the
profitability on that contract. In addition, duritige term of a contract, public agencies may retcpditional or revised services which may
impact the economics of the transaction. Most efaauntracts permit our clients, with prior notite terminate the contracts at any time
without cause. While the renewal, termination odifioation of a contract may materially impact adividual project, we do not believe the
renewal, termination or modification of any specifontract would have a material adverse effeadwrconsolidated operations due to our
large volume of transactions and low customer coimagon.

Competition

The market for our services is highly fragrted. We often compete with many other firms ragdrom small local firms to large
national firms. Contract awards are based primanilyjualifications, relevant experience, staffiagabilities, geographic presence, stability
and price.

Doing business with governmental agendeomplex and requires the ability to comply wittricate regulations and satisfy periodic
audits. We have been serving cities, counties,iagpeistricts and other public agencies for overyé@rs. We believe that the ability to
understand these requirements and to successtuljuct business with governmental entities and @igeris a barrier to entry for potential
competitors.

Our competition varies by type of clierypé of service and geography. The range of congpstibr any one project can vary depending
upon technical specialties, the relative valuehefiroject, geographic location, financial ternisks associated with the work, and any client
imposed restrictions. Unlike most of our compestave focus our services on public sector cligatglic sector clients generally choose
among competing firms by weighing the quality, enguece, innovation and timeliness of the firm'syggrs. When selecting consultants for
engineering projects, many government agenciesgréred to, and others choose to, employ Qualifioa Based Selection, or QBS. QBS
requires the selection of the most technically ifjedl firms for a project, while the financial atefjal terms of the engagement are generally
secondary. QBS applies primarily to work done by Bngineering Services segment. Contracts in theidEinance Services and Homeland
Security Services areas typically are not subjgahéndatory QBS standards, and often are awardedgh a competitive bid process.

Our competition varies geographically. Altigh we provide services in several states, welmagtronger in certain service lines in sc
geographical areas than in other regions. Similadyne of our larger competitors are stronger meseervice lines in certain localities but
not as competitive
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in others. Our smaller competitors generally argtéd both geographically as well as in the sewvibey are able to provide.

We believe that the primary competitorsdar Engineering Services segment include: Chatdmtt & Associates, Inc., Bureau
Veritas, Harris & Associates, Psomas, RBF Conggilfitetra Tech, Inc., Stantec, Inc., Michael Bakerpgoration, TRC Companies, Inc. and
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. Our chief competitoour Public Finance Services segment, incluaedTaussig & Associates, Harris &
Associates, NBS Government Finance Group and BriYstung LLP. We believe the Homeland Security Seegi segment competes
primarily with EG&G (a division of URS Corporatioand SRA International, Inc.

Insurance

We currently maintain general liability imance, with coverage in the amount of $1.0 milfi@n occurrence, subject to a $2.0 million
general aggregate limit; and professional liabilityurance, with $5.0 million in coverage per claand a $10.0 million annual aggregate
limit. Our professional liability policy is a "clais made" policy. We also carry excess coveraga afditional $9.0 million for general
liability claims. We are liable to pay these claifrem our assets if and when the aggregate settieargudgment amount exceeds our policy
limits.

Employees

At December 28, 2007, we had approximaddly full-time employees and 181 part-time employ@&disPublic Agency Resources'
employees are classified as part-time. Our empbyesude, among others, licensed civil, trafficlatructural engineers, land surveyors,
certified building officials, licensed geotechnieaigineers and engineering geologists, certifisgectors and plans examiners, licensed
architects and landscape architects, certifiedn@es) and information technology specialists. Wleebse that we attract and retain highly
skilled personnel with significant industry exp@ge and strong client relationships by offeringithehallenging assignments in a stable work
environment. We believe that our employee relatanesgood.

The following table sets forth the numbgoor employees in each of our business segments@anholding company:

As of
Fiscal Year End

2007 2006 2005
Engineering Service 49¢ 542 481
Public Finance Service 75 78 78
Homeland Security Servict 8 4 1
Holding Company Employees (Willdan Group, Ir 49 46 39

Total 62¢ 67C 59¢

At December 28, 2007, we contracted withrapimately 60 former and current public safetyiag#fs to conduct homeland security
services training courses. These instructors assifled as subconsultants and not employees. éé¢mber 28, 2007, all three of our field
survey employees were covered by a Master Laboedgent between the International Union of Operdiingineers Local Union No. 12
and the Southern California Association of Civilgireers and Land Surveyors, which expires in Ogtabé0.
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Intellectual Property

The Willdan Group of Companies, Willdan, Miinancial, Arroyo Geotechnical, and AHS names laggds are service marks of ours,
and we have applied for federal trademark registmatfor each with the United States Patent anddmraark Office. We believe we have
strong name recognition in the western United Statel that this provides us a competitive advantagetaining new business.
Consequently, we believe it is important to protmat brand identity through trademark registratiofise name and logo of our proprietary
software, MuniMagic®, are registered trademarkdlahiFinancial, and we have registered a federaydgpt for the source code for the
MuniMagic® software. We license the MuniMagic® sedire to existing clients pursuant to licensing agrents that allow varying levels of
access to data. This technology allows clientsg¢atheir own data and is a form of deliverabl®tw clients. The use of licensing provide:
protection for this proprietary technology. MuniMe® is not a commercial product offered for sale.

Available Information

Our website is www.willdangroup.com and swestor relations page is under the caption "$tmeRelations” on our website. We make
available on this website under "SEC Filings," foéeharge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quigrteports on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports asa®oeasonably practicable after we electronidddyor furnish such materials to the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or SECaMtemake available on this website our prior isgsicalls and, under the heading
"Corporate Governance", our Code of Ethical Condegtther, a copy of this annual report on FornK18-located at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Wgisim, D.C. 20549. Information on the operatioritaf Public Reference Room car
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. SEE€ maintains an Internet site that contains repproxy and information statements
and other information regarding our filings at htpww.sec.gov.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

A downturn in public and private sector construction activity in the regions we serve may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

A downturn in construction activity in ogeographic service areas may affect demand fosewices, which could have a material
adverse effect on the results of our operationscamdinancial condition. During fiscal year 20@/majority of our contract revenue was
generated by services rendered to public agentiesrinection with private and public sector corittam projects.

Our business, financial condition and ressaf operations may also be adversely affectedomglitions that impact the construction se
in general, including, among other things:

. Changes in national and local market conditionstdughanges in general or local economic conditanms neighborhood
characteristics;

. Slow-growth or no-growth initiatives or legislation

. Adverse changes in local and regional governmemities on investment in infrastructure;

. Adverse changes in federal and state policies daygthe allocation of funds to local and regioagéncies;

. The impact of present or future environmental llagisn and compliance with environmental laws atfteoregulatory

requirements;

. Changes in real estate tax rates and assessments;

. Increases in interest rates and changes in théahiliy, cost and terms of financing;

. Adverse changes in other governmental rules andlffmlicies; and

. Earthquakes and other natural disasters, whiclt@ase uninsured losses, and other factors whichegt@nd our control.

Any of these factors could adversely afteetdemand for our services, which could have rah adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Changesin thelocal and regional economies of California could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Adverse economic and other conditions éifigcthe local and regional economies of Califormiay reduce the demand for our services,
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition and results of opereti During fiscal year 2007,
approximately 81% of our contract revenue was @erivom services rendered to public agencies iif@ala. From 1991 to 1996, Californ
experienced an economic downturn that had a negattigact on the construction and development secitris economic downturn caused
us to experience cash flow difficulties and subsghoperating losses. We believe California isreatly experiencing another economic
downturn, which could negatively impact our revesiaad profitability. We believe the downturn in tlesidential housing market has alre
impacted our revenues, in particular revenue frees fassociated with building permits.

Reductionsin state and local government budgets could negatively impact their capital spending and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our state and local government clients fiaag budget deficits that prohibit them from furglimew or existing projects. In addition,
existing and potential clients may either postpeniering into
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new contracts or request price concessions. Ifre@at able to reduce our costs quickly enouglespond to the revenue decline from these
clients that may occur, our operating results wdnddadversely affected. Accordingly, these facédfsct our ability to accurately forecast our
future revenue and earnings from business areamtnabe adversely impacted by market conditions.

Legislation may be enacted that limits the ability of state, regional or local agenciesto contract for our privatized services. Such legidation
would affect our ability to obtain new contracts and may decrease the demand for our services.

Legislation is proposed periodically, peutarly in California, that attempts to limit thbikity of governmental agencies to contract with
private consultants to provide services. Shouldhdegislation pass and be upheld, demand for auicgs may be materially adversely
affected. During fiscal year 2007, approximatel$®af our contract revenue was derived from servieaslered to public agencies in
California. While attempts at such legislation héaited in the past, as the composition of Califaislegislative body changes over time tt
is an increased risk that measures could be adaptld future that limit the market for privatizedrvices.

State and other public employee unions may bring litigation that seeksto limit the ability of public agencies to contract with private firmsto
perform government employee functions in the area of public improvements. Judicial determinationsin favor of these unions could affect
our ability to compete for contracts and may have an adverse effect on our revenue and profitability.

Over at least the last 20 years, stateotimel public employee unions have challenged tliditsaof propositions, legislation, charters
and other government regulations that allow puddjencies to contract with private firms to provégevices in the fields of engineering,
design and construction of public improvements thigtht otherwise be provided by public employedsede challenges could have the affect
of eliminating, or severely restricting, the alyilif municipalities to hire private firms for thegpose of designing and constructing public
improvements, and otherwise require them to useruemployees to perform the services.

For example, the Professional Engineef3dlifornia Government, or PECG, a union represgmgiate civil service employees, has been
challenging Caltrans' hiring of private firms sirkt®86, and in 2002 began a judicial challenge dfr&as' hiring practices based on Caltrans'
interpretation of the effect of Proposition 35 (fessional Engineers in California Government, evaleff Morales, et al.). The California
Supreme Court ruled in favor of Caltrans, conclgdimat Caltrans may hire private contractors tdquar architectural and engineering
services on public works. Although Caltrans wasceasful in this recent litigation, similar claimsaynbe brought in the future and we cannot
predict their outcome. If a state or other pubfigpdoyee union is successful in its challenge anal Besult the ability of state agencies to hire
private firms is severely limited, such a decisioould likely lead to additional litigation challeimg the ability of the state, counties,
municipalities and other public agencies to hiiggie engineering, architectural and other firrhg, dutcome of which could affect our abil
to compete for contracts and may have an advefset @h our revenue and profitability.

Changesin elected or appointed officials could have a material adverse effect on our ability to retain an existing contract with or obtain
additional contracts from a public agency.

Since the decision to retain our servisasade by individuals, such as city managers,catyncils and other elected or appointed
officials, our business and financial results andition could be adversely affected by the resfitocal and regional elections. A change in
the individuals responsible for selecting consutdar and awarding contracts on behalf of a pulfjency due to an election could adversely
affect our ability to retain an existing contragtiwor obtain additional contracts from such pullgency.
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Fixed price contracts under which we perform some of our servicesimpose risksto our ability to maintain or grow our profitability.

In fiscal year 2007, approximately 16% af contract revenue was derived from fixed pricetacts. Under fixed price contracts, we
perform services under a contract at a stipulatee pvhich protects clients but exposes us to atgrenumber of risks than time-anthterial
and unit-based contracts. These risks include:

. Underestimation of costs;

. Ambiguities in specifications;

. Problems with new technologies;

. Unforeseen costs or difficulties;

. Failures of subcontractors;

. Delays beyond our control; and

. Economic and other changes that may occur duriagdntract period.

The occurrence of any such risk could heweaterial adverse effect on our results of opamnator financial condition.

Because we primarily provide services to municipalities and other public agencies, we are more susceptible to the unique risks associated
with government contracts.

We primarily work for municipalities andhetr public agencies. Consequently, we are expaseertain risks associated with
government contracting, any one of which can hareterial adverse effect on our business, finamgatition or results of operations. Th
risks include:

. The ability of the public agency to terminate tloatract with 30 days' prior notice or less;

. Changes in government spending and fiscal poliglgsh can have an adverse effect on demand fosenices;
. Contracts that are subject to government budgéésyand often are subject to renewal on an arbvasis;

. The often wide variation of the types and priciagnts of contracts from agency to agency;

. The difficulty of obtaining change orders and aiddi$ to contracts; and

. The requirement to perform periodic audits as alitam of certain contract arrangements.

Changesin the perceived risk of acts of terrorism or natural disasters could have a material adverse effect on our ability to grow our
American Homeland Solutions business.

If there is a significant decrease in thecpived risk of the likelihood that one or morésasf terrorism will be conducted in the United
States, or a significant decrease in the percaig&df the occurrence of natural disasters, oilitatto grow and generate revenue through
American Homeland Solutions, or AHS, could be niegét affected. AHS provides training and consugtservices to local and regional
agencies related to preparing for and respondirigcidents of terrorism and natural disaster. Stholé perceived risk of such incidence
decline, federal and state funding for homelandisgcand emergency preparedness could be redub&thwinight decrease demand for our
services and have a material adverse affect obuginess, financial condition and results of opensat
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Theloss of certain of our key executives could adversely affect our business, including our ability to secure and compl ete engagements and
attract and retain employees.

In 2006 and 2007, we experienced signititamover in our management team. In 2006, ouiocmder and Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Dan Heil, passed away unexpectedly. Just poiddir. Heil's death, and at his recommendation,Rnard of Directors elected Win
Westfall to succeed Mr. Heil. Mr. Westfall resigreesiour Chief Executive Officer in February 200d ane of our directors, Tracy Lenocker,
agreed to serve as our interim Chief Executived@ffiMr. Lenocker resigned as our interim Chief &nive Officer when we appointed Tom
Brishin as our new President and Chief Executiviec®f on April 2, 2007. In addition, Mallory McCam& our former Chief Financial
Officer, assumed the role of Chief Operations @ffim July 2007 and Kimberly Gant was appointedraw Chief Financial Officer. Richard
Kopecky, our former Senior Vice President and tresi@ent of our subsidiary, Willdan, was also teratéd in February 2007 and replacec
David Hunt, who has been with Willdan for more tt#dnyears.

Because of the recent turnover of our mansmt team, any additional losses of our manageteant or key employees could have a
material adverse effect on our business, incluthiegability to secure or complete contracts anatti@ct and retain additional employees. Our
success is highly dependent upon the efforts, talabilities, marketing skills and operational @xtton of our key executives and managers.

Our ability to grow and compete in our industry will be hampered if we are unable to retain the continued service of our key professionals
or to identify, hire and retain additional qualified professionals.

A critical factor to our business is ouili@pto attract and retain qualified professionalge are continually at risk of losing current
professionals or being unable to hire additionafgssionals as needed. If we are unable to atteagtqualified employees, our ability to gr
will be adversely affected. If we are unable t@aietturrent employees, our financial condition aeslilts of operations may be adversely
affected. We would also be increasing our competjtas former employees pose the greatest thresggmificant competition to our business.

We operatein a highly fragmented industry, and we may not be able to compete effectively with our larger competitors.

The market for services in the engineenmgnicipal consulting, public finance consultingogechnical, homeland security and other
technical services industries is competitive arghlyi fragmented. Contract awards are based priynanilquality of service, relevant
experience, staffing capabilities, reputation, gapgic presence, stability and price. Some of ounpetitors in certain service areas have
more personnel and greater financial, technicalraacketing resources than us. With regard to erging related services, which represet
approximately 82% and 84% of our contract revemudi§cal years 2007 and 2006, respectively, ommpetitors include many larger
consulting firms such as AECOM Technology CorpamatiCH2M Hill, Jacobs Engineering Group and TetegH, Inc. In certain public
finance consulting services, we may compete withpdaccounting firms, such as Ernst & Young LLP. tda offer no assurance that we will
be able to compete successfully in the future tridse or other competitors.

Our services may expose us to liability in excess of our current insurance coverage, which may have a material adverse effect on our
liquidity.

Our services involve significant risks ebfessional and other liabilities, which may subgtdly exceed the fees we derive from our
services. In addition, from time to time, we assuialglities as a result of indemnification provisis contained in our service contracts. We
cannot predict the magnitude of these potentibllites.
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We currently maintain general liability imance, with coverage in the amount of $1.0 millg@n occurrence, subject to a $2.0 million
general aggregate limit; and professional liabilityurance, with $5.0 million in coverage per claand a $10.0 million annual aggregate
limit. We also carry excess coverage of an addii®®.0 million for general liability claims. Clasrmay be made against us that exceed |
limits. We are liable to pay claims from our assetnd when the aggregate settlement or judgmmioat exceeds our policy limits. In 201
we experienced two claims against our professilietaility insurance that exceeded by $3.1 millible taggregate annual limit of our
coverage, which at that time was $5.0 million. &aihg resolution of these disputes, we were lidbtehe $3.1 million in excess of our
policy limits. Our professional liability policy ia "claims made" policy. Thus, only claims madeimythe term of the policy are covered. If
we terminate our professional liability policy add not obtain retroactive coverage, we would basuried for claims made after termination
even if these claims are based on events or ateticurred during the term of the policy. Furtheen, insurance may not protect us against
liability because our policies typically have vargoexceptions to the claims covered and also requsito assume some costs of the claim
even though a portion of the claim may be covelredddition, if we expand into new markets, we maybe able to obtain insurance
coverage for these new activities or, if insuraisogbtained, the dollar amount of any liabilitiesurred could exceed our insurance coverage.
A partially or completely uninsured claim, if suss&ul and of significant magnitude, could have aemal adverse effect on our liquidity.

The quality of our service and our ability to perform under some of our contracts would be adversely affected if qualified subconsultants
are unavailable for usto engage.

Under some of our contracts, we rely ondtfierts and skills of subconsultants for the parfance of some of the tasks. In fiscal years
2007 and 2006, subconsultant costs comprised ajppatady 6.0% and 5.0%, respectively, of our coritragenue. The absence of qualified
subconsultants with whom we have a satisfactogtimiship could adversely affect the quality of earvice offerings and therefore our
financial results.

Potential future acquisitions could be difficult to integrate, divert the attention of key personnel, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder
value and impair our financial results.

As part of our business strategy, we intiencbonsider acquisitions of companies that areptementary to our business. Appropriate
acquisitions could allow us to expand into new gapbical locations, offer new services, or acgaditional talent. Accordingly, our future
performance will be impacted by our ability to itighappropriate businesses to acquire, negoteterfible terms for such acquisitions and
then effectively and efficiently integrate such aisifions into our existing businesses. There ig@mainty that we will succeed in such
endeavors.

Acquisitions involve numerous risks, anyadfich could harm our business, including:

. Difficulties in integrating the operations, techogies, products, existing contracts, accountingmardonnel of the target
company and realizing the anticipated synergigh@tombined businesses;

. Difficulties in supporting and transitioning custers, if any, of the target company;
. Diversion of our financial and management resouficers existing operations;
. The price we pay or other resources that we davetgexceed the value we realize, or the value wdduave realized if we

had allocated the purchase price or other resotimcaisother opportunity;

. Risks of entering new markets in which we havetkahior no experience;
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. Potential loss of key employees, customers antegiiaalliances from either our current businesthertarget company

business;

. Assumption of unanticipated problems or latentiliadss, such as problems with the quality of thegiet company's services;
and

. Inability to generate sufficient net income to jfysthe acquisition costs.

Acquisitions also frequently result in tleeording of goodwill and other intangible asselscl are subject to potential impairment in
future that could harm our financial results. ldiddn, if we finance acquisitions by issuing cortitde debt or equity securities, our existing
stockholders may be diluted, which could lowerrierket price of our common stock. As a result, éffail to properly evaluate acquisitions
or investments, we may not achieve the anticipbgrgefits of any such acquisitions, and we may iosts in excess of amounts that we
anticipate.

If we fail to comply with the requirements imposed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the trading price of our stock could drop
significantly.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley, we are requingatovide a management certification on
our internal controls over financial reporting. Base we are not an accelerated filer, we are noinetl to provide an attestation report
related to the effectiveness of our internal cdetower financial reporting from our independemgiséered public accounting firm for fiscal
year 2007. In order to achieve compliance with iBact04 of Sarban-Oxley, we engaged outside professional consultarassist us in
documenting and evaluating our internal controlrdireancial reporting. This exercise has been lattly and challenging. We believe the
efforts we have put forth to date give us the btsionclude that we have effective internal cdstowver financial reporting. When our
independent auditors attest to the effectivenessiointernal controls over financial reportingfiiure years, our auditors may not agree with
our management's conclusion and, as a result, wamilte able to conclude that our internal contoaksr financial reporting are effective.
Moreover, the costs to comply with the provisioh§ection 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, as presentlyfecefcould continue to be significant.

In addition, during the course of testihg tesign and effectiveness of our internal costnee or our independent registered public
accounting firm may identify deficiencies that waymot be able to remediate in time to allow foqualified reports from our independent
registered public accounting firm. Furthermoreyd fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy ofimti@rnal controls, as such standards are
modified, supplemented or amended from time to tiwemay not be able to ensure that we can condodm ongoing basis that we have
effective internal controls over financial repogiim accordance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-O&éfgctive internal controls, particularly
those related to revenue recognition, are nece$sang to produce reliable financial reports arelienportant to helping prevent financial
fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial rescor prevent fraud, our business and operatisglt®could be harmed, investors could lose
confidence in our reported financial informationdahe trading price of our stock could drop sitpaifitly.

We have incurred, and will continueto incur, significant costs as a public company.

As a public company, we incur significaegédl, accounting and other expenses that we dithoot prior to November 2006 as a private
company. New rules and regulations for public conggmay increase our legal and financial compéagwsts and will make some activities
more time-consuming and costly. For example, wesekihese rules and regulations to make it mofecdif and more expensive for us to
maintain director and officer liability insuran@nd we may be required to incur substantial costsdintain the same or similar coverage.

19




We may not be able to obtain capital when desired on favorable terms, if at all, or without dilution to our stockholders.

We anticipate that our current cash, ligoikestments, cash equivalents, cash provided byatipg activities and funds available thro
our revolving line of credit will be sufficient tmeet our current and anticipated needs for geerabrate purposes during the next
12 months. It is possible, however, that we maygeoterate sufficient cash flow from operationstheovise have the capital resources to
meet our future capital needs. If this occurs, vey meed additional financing to execute on ourentror future business strategies, which
include the following:

. Hire additional personnel;

. Develop new or enhance existing service lines;
. Expand our business geographically;

. Enhance our operating infrastructure;

. Acquire complementary businesses; or

. Otherwise respond to competitive pressures.

If we raise additional funds through theusnce of convertible debt or equity securities,gbrcentage ownership of our stockholders
could be significantly diluted, and these newluis securities may have rights, preferences oilggs senior to those of existing
stockholders. We cannot assure you that additimehcing will be available on terms favorable & ar at all. If adequate funds are not
available or are not available on acceptable teifrasid when needed, our ability to fund our operat, take advantage of unanticipated
opportunities, develop or enhance our productstloerwise respond to competitive pressures woulsidrgficantly limited.

The concentration of ownership of our stock may delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changesin our management, and
as a result may hinder the ability of our stockholders to take advantage of a premium offer.

The concentration of ownership of our stotky have the effect of delaying or preventing angfe in control of the company or a cha
in our management and may adversely affect thagatt other rights of other holders of our commtmtk. As of March 19, 2008 our
directors and executive officers beneficially owBa4,251 shares of common stock, or approximatél§% of our outstanding common
stock. Of these shares, 922,120 shares, or appatediyrl2.9% of our outstanding common stock, areamhby Linda L. Heil, a member of
our board of directors.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

In addition to current and historical infaation, this report contains forward-looking stag¢ets within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Thesdetaents relate to our future operations, prospectgntial products, services,
developments and business strategies. These stdtecas, in some cases, be identified by the useodls like "may,” "will," "should,"
"could," "would," "intend," "expect," "plan," "ardipate,” "believe," "estimate," "predict," "projgctpotential,” or "continue" or the negative
of such terms or other comparable terminology. Tésrt includes, among others, forward-lookingesteents regarding our:

. Expectations about future customers;

. Expectations about expanded service offerings;

. Expectations about our ability to cross-sell addisil services to existing clients;
. Expectations about our intended geographical expans
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. Expectations about our ability to attract executfficers and key employee
. Evaluation of the materiality of our current legabceedings; and

. Expectations about positive cash flow generatiaheisting cash and investments being sufficiemhé@t normal operating
requirements.

These statements involve certain knownuarkchown risks and uncertainties that could causeowal results to differ materially from
those expressed or implied in our forward-lookitegements. Such risks and uncertainties includengnothers, those listed in this section.
We do not intend, and undertake no obligation,pdate any of our forward-looking statements afterdate of this report to reflect actual
results or future events or circumstances.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are locategpnoximately 41,000 square feet of office spaceé wealease at 2401 East Katella Avenue,
Anaheim, California. In addition, we lease offiggee in over 20 other locations principally in @aliia, Nevada, and Arizona. In total, our
facilities contain approximately 150,000 squaré tdeffice space and are subject to leases thateethrough fiscal year 2013. We also rent
additional office space on a month-to-month baais.believe that our existing facilities are adeguatmeet current requirements and that
suitable additional or substitute space will beilalsde as needed to accommodate any expansioneshtipns and for additional offices.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject from time to time to claamsl lawsuits, including those alleging professi@rabrs or omissions, that arise in the
ordinary course of business against firms, likesptirat operate in the engineering and consultiotepsions. We carry professional liability
insurance, subject to certain deductibles and pdiliaits, for such claims as they arise and mayrfitome to time establish reserves for
litigation that is considered probable of a los® kvay incur substantial expenses in defending ag#iird party claims. In the event of a
determination adverse to us, we may incur substaminetary liability and be required to change lmusiness practices. Either of these
results could have a material adverse effect orfinancial position, results of operations or céefvs.

We were involved in a dispute with the GifywWest Hollywood, California over a project inG2 This matter concerned a construction
project in the City of West Hollywood for the immement of Santa Monica Boulevard. The project neglithe reconstruction of
approximately three miles of roadway. The city #melgeneral contractor claimed that the designnepared was inadequate for the volume
and type of traffic on Santa Monica Boulevard. Ehtg also claimed that we failed to control thetsosf the project due to contractor claims
for extra costs.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, followingdral in the Los Angeles County Superior Court, jilny rendered a verdict against us and
awarded damages to the city in the amount of $@1Bm including attorney's fees, interest andtso®ur insurance company posted bonds
and filed an appeal with respect to this matterifuthe appeal process, interest accrued on ttetamding judgment at the rate of 10% per
annum. As of December 30, 2005, we believed thatagimately $3.2 million of the damages was covdrgaur professional liability
insurance policy. Therefore, in fiscal year 2008, expensed $2.7 million of this judgment and reednetlated interest expense of
$0.4 million related to the West Hollywood case.
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In the third quarter of 2006, we obtainezbart ruling with respect to an unrelated claimtthlso arose in fiscal year 2002 awarding us
approximately $1.0 million on a claim for indemnitgcovering the settlement amount and interesetimreand attorney fees and costs. At that
time, we reflected an additional receivable of agpnately $1.0 million from our insurance compargchuse we were able to replenish our
insurance coverage by approximately $1.0 milliontfe 2002 policy year since our insurance calrégt previously paid the settlement
amount. In our consolidated balance sheet as oémber 29, 2006, we therefore reflected a totallitgtof $6.9 million and related
receivables of $4.2 from the insurance company.

We entered into a settlement agreemerdcfe March 6, 2007, with the City of West Hollyagbrelating to the Santa Monica
Boulevard matter. Pursuant to the settlement ageagrhoth parties agreed to a full mutual reledsdl @laims related to the lawsuit and
appeal, subject to dismissal of the appeal. Nejlagty admitted any fault or liability related teetclaims in the lawsuit. Under the terms of
settlement agreement, we agreed to pay $6.2 mili@ash to the city. Our insurance company pai@ #3llion of the settlement amount and
we paid $3 million. We also agreed to provide af,880 credit to the city for future services. Theufe services are to be provided at our
then prevailing rates and can be chosen in this@ble discretion from services provided by usupmunicipal clients. The city must use the
credit before December 31, 2012. The city has 624¢133 of this credit to date, leaving a balarfcg63,867.

In February 2008, the ruling for the unteth$1.0 million indemnity claim was appealed by tinoss-defendant and overturned by the
court. Because the ruling was overturned, we rexketise receivable we recorded in fiscal year 201braflected an expense of $1.0 million
in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote ofsiackholders during the last quarter of our figesr ended December 28, 2007.

PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK , RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market | nformation for Common Stock

Since November 21, 2006, the common sté&Kithdan Group, Inc. has been listed and tradedhenNasdaq Global Market under the
symbol "WLDN". The following table sets out the hignd low daily closing sale prices as reportethelNASDAQ Global Market. These
reported prices reflect inter-dealer prices withadjustments for retail markups, markdowns, or céssions.

2007 2006
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $ 10.1C $ 8.9C N/A N/A
2nd Quarte $ 10.00 $ 9.0C N/A N/A
3rd Quartel $ 10.4¢ $  9.5¢ N/A N/A
4th Quartel $ 104C $ 6.31 $10.0C $10.6¢

On March 26, 2008, the closing sales poigeshare of our common stock, as reported on #sel&l) Global Market, was $5.51.
Stockholders
As of March 26, 2008, there were 97 stodttéis of record of our common stock.
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Dividends

We did not declare or pay cash dividendswncommon stock in fiscal years 2006 and 2007 déared our final S Corporation
distribution of $6.3 million to holders of our coremstock in 2006. The distribution was paid in ®egual portions in December 2006 and
January 2007. Our revolving credit agreement piiththe payment of any dividend or distribution@m common stock either in cash, stock
or any other property without the lender's consent.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In the three years preceding the filinghi$ report, we have issued the following secusitleat were not registered under the Securities
Act:

On November 27, 2006, we issued stock wsria connection with our initial public offeririg the underwriter, Wedbush Morgan
Securities, Inc., for the right to purchase 290,60@mon shares at 120% of the IPO share pricel@10$ per share). The warrants became
exercisable on November 20, 2007 and expire on dbee 20, 2011. The stock warrants were issuedianee on Regulation D promulgal
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On June 30, 2006, we issued an aggregatd b?,640 shares of our common stock to the 7&ebkbéders of The Willdan Group of
Companies, Inc., a California corporation ("Willd&alifornia"). The shares were issued in connectigh the merger of Willdan California
into Willdan Group in order to effect its reincorption in the state of Delaware. The shares waigeid in reliance on Rule 145(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In January 2006, we issued an aggregae96D shares of our common stock to four purchadesscribed below, for an aggregate
purchase price of $17,798 (or $3.62 per share).

From August 2005 through October 2005, ssaed an aggregate of 953,500 shares of our corstnckito 59 purchasers, described
below, for an aggregate purchase price of $3,5%4(60%$3.77 per share). These issuances wereralbptne same stock offering.

With respect to the transactions in Jan28&36 and from August 2005 through October 2005 pilrchasers were a select group of our
officers, directors, key managers or consultanthefCompany and/or its subsidiaries. The offersald of shares during these periods were
not registered or qualified under federal or stateurities laws, and exemptions from registratioth gualification provided by these securit
laws may not have been available or may not haea berfected. Consequently, we may be deemed ®\halated the registration and
qualification requirements of these securities |swith respect to the offer and sale of the commntonks To address this matter, in July 2006
we made a repurchase offer to the holders of theestof common stock in accordance with the rutesragulations promulgated by the
commissioner of the California Department of Cogtioms. Under the repurchase offer, we offeregpurchase from each stockholder all of
his or her shares purchased during the periodéstipn at a price equal to the original purchageepraid by such stockholder plus interest at
an annual rate of 7% from the date of purchaseofie stockholders elected to decline the remsetoffer.

Unless otherwise stated, the sales of log@securities were deemed by the Registrant exempt from registration under the
Securities Act in reliance upon Section 4(2) of 8eurities Act as transactions by an issuer natling any public offering. The purchasers
comprised a select group of our officers, diregtoranagers and service providers who, as a graye, had longstanding relationships with
and knowledge of our Company, our senior managearahbur board of directors. The purchasers wereighed financial and other
information concerning us and were allowed the oppity to ask questions and receive informatiamfrus prior to making their investment
decisions. The purchasers represented their inteidi acquire the securities for investment purpa@sel not with a view to sell or for sale in
connection with any distribution thereof. Basedluoa limited nature of the offering, the level ofdwledge and relationships of the purchasers
with us, the provision and access to informatiod #e restrictions on transfer, we believe ourriffgs satisfied the Section 4(2) exemption
of the Act.

I ssuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The financial data set forth below shouddréad in conjunction with our corresponding coitlstéd financial statements and notes

thereto and Management's Discussion and Analydisnaincial Condition and Results of Operationsudeld elsewhere in this annual report.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Contract revenu
Direct costs of contract revent

Salaries and wagt

Production expenst

Subconsultant servict

Total direct costs of contract rever

General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes, employee bel
Facilities
Stoclk-based compensatic
Depreciation and amortizatic
Litigation accrual (reversa
Other

Total general and administrative expen
Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Other, ne
Total other income (expens
Income (loss) before income tax expe

Income tax expens

Net income (loss
Earnings per common share, basic and dilute

Weighted average common shares outstanding: B
Diluted

S Corporation distributions paid per share

Pro Forma Data (unaudited)(2):

Pro forma provision for income tax

Pro forma net income (los

Pro forma earnings per common share, basic anted

Other Operating Data (unaudited):
Adjusted EBITDA(3)

Revenue per employee(
Employee headcount at period enc
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Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands except per share amounts)

$ 78,79¢ $ 78,33¢ % 67,26: $ 58,26: $ 54,48t
25,76¢ 24,60: 20,91¢ 15,62:¢ 14,52:
1,56¢ 1,49¢ 1,52¢ 1,49; 1,32
4,60( 4,16¢ 4,74~ 6,08¢ 7,36(
31,93 30,26¢ 27,19: 23,20¢ 23,20¢
25,06! 26,051 22,72( 19,71 17,47:
4,54¢ 4,04¢ 3,481 3,261 3,46¢
20¢ 38 2,731 — —
1,74 1,58¢ 1,257 1,05¢ 86t
1,04¢ (1,049 2,68¢ — —
11,727 10,35¢ 7,93t 6,92:¢ 6,20z
44,33¢ 41,02¢ 40,81¢ 30,957 28,00¢
2,522 7,042 (745) 4,097 3,27(
49¢ (779 (630) (272) (36€)
66€ 2,47( 11 (6) 1
1,168 1,697 (619) (27€) (365)
3,681 8,741 (1,369 3,81¢ 2,90¢
1,54: 2,021 17 47 53
$ 2,14¢ $ 6,72C $  (1,38) $ 3,77: $ 2,85:
IEEEEE———" S S N S
$ 0.3C $ 137 $ (0.3 $ 1.0 $ 0.7¢
| | | | |
7,14¢ 4,90(C 3,99 3,65 3,63¢
7,15( 4,90(C 3,99¢ 3,65 3,63:
$ — 3 1.1€ $ 0.46 $ 03C $ 0.11
$ 259% $ 54¢ % 152¢ $ 1,162
$ 6,145 $ (1,919 $ 2,291 % 1,74¢
$ 125 $ 0.4¢) $ 0.6: $ 0.4¢
$ 536: $ 7,651 $ 5951 $ 516 $ 4,15¢
$ 13z $ 131 $ 128 $ 11¢  $ 113
62¢ 67C 59¢ 50¢€ 451




Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 2,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 1551 $ 20,63: $ 3,06 $ 26€ $ 49¢
Working capital 30,17: 26,72 9,42¢ 7,19¢ 5,19¢
Total asset 48,22¢ 57,10¢ 32,797 23,22¢ 21,46(
Total indebtednes 1,547 1,632 1,85¢ 3,64: 5,03:
Total redeemable common stc — — 14,66( 11,47 8,661
Total stockholders' equi 35,65: 33,26¢ — — —
@ Per share amounts have been adjusted for a staickedd paid on January 1, 2005 of three sharesar outstanding share.
2 Prior to our initial public offering in November @6, we were taxed as an S Corporation for purpokgsieral and state income tax

As a result of that offering, our S Corporatiortistéaterminated and we are now taxed as a C Coiporander federal and state tax

laws. The pro forma data reflects combined fedmnal state income taxes on a pro forma basis as ifad been taxed as a

C Corporation during those periods using an effedax rate of 40%.
(3) Adjusted EBITDA is a supplemental measure usedusyntanagement to measure our operating performaviealefine Adjusted

EBITDA as net income plus net interest expensa@rimetax expense (benefit), depreciation and anatidiz, loss (gains) on sales of
assets, accrued expenses related to a litigatittenand a one-time stock-based compensation egpensrded in anticipation of our
IPO, less proceeds from life insurance policiesiedron our former chief executive officer. Ouridéfon of Adjusted EBITDA may
differ from those of many companies reporting samyl named measures. This measure should be coegigeaddition to, and not as
a substitute for or superior to, other measurdmancial performance prepared in accordance with. [denerally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP, such as operating income agtdmcome. We believe Adjusted EBITDA enables managnt to separate non-
recurring income and expense items from our residiliperations to provide a more normalized andsistant view of operating
performance on a period-to-period basis. We usegtdd EBITDA to evaluate our performance for, amotiger things, budgeting,
forecasting and incentive compensation purposesaléebelieve Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investatesearch analysts,
investment bankers and lenders because it remowasdur operational results the impact of certainrecurring income and exper
items, which may facilitate comparison of our ré¢sfilom period to period.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a recognized term under GA&RI does not purport to be an alternative to dimgréncome or net income as
an indicator of operating performance or any ofB&AP measure.
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The following is a reconciliation of net incomeAdjusted EBITDA (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss $ 214/ % 6,72 $ (1,38) $ 3,77z $ 2,85
Interest incomt (649) (13%) (19 2 1)
Interest expens (499 773 63C 272 36€
Income tax provisiol 1,54: 2,021 17 47 53
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,747 1,58¢ 1,25; 1,05¢ 86<
Loss (gain) on sale of ass: 28 (13 24 18 19
Life insurance proceec — (2,250 — — —
Litigation accrual (reversa 1,04¢ (1,049 2,68¢ — —
Stock-based compensation expense recorded in

anticipation of our IPC — — 2,731 — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 536 $ 7,651 $ 5951 $ 5,16 $ 4,15¢

4) Reflects contract revenue, excluding revenue rélateeimbursement of subconsultants and othescdstided by the average
number of full-time equivalent employees during pleeiod.

(5) Includes full-time and part-time employees.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcegises to small and mid-sized public agencies irf@alia and other western states.
Outsourcing enables these agencies to provide @ maitge of specialized services, without havingtor and maintain the overhead
necessary to develop staffing in-house. We proaitieoad range of services to public agencies, dietu

. Civil Engineering;

. Building and Safety Services;

. Geotechnical Engineering;

. Financial and Economic Consulting; and

. Disaster Preparedness and Homeland Security.

We operate our business through a netwboker 20 offices located throughout California arter western states and had a staff o
as of December 28, 2007 that includes licensedhergs and other professionals. We ranked 136 da@®top design firms iEngineering
New:-Record's2007 Design Survey. Our core clients are publicya@gs in communities with populations ranging fré&000 to 300,000
people. We believe communities of this size arecusetved by large outsourcing companies that teocus on securing large federal and
state projects, as well as projects for the prigatgtor. We seek to establish close working raiatigps with our public agency clients and,
over time, to expand the breadth and depth oféhdces we provide to them.

While we currently serve communities thrieogt the country, our business is concentratedaiifa@nia and neighboring states. We
provide services to approximately 60% of the 4T@siand over 60% of the 58 counties in Califorkiiée also serve special districts, school
districts and other public agencies.

Willdan Group, Inc. is a Delaware corpayatformed in 2006 for the purposes of effectingrisiacorporation of The Willdan Group of
Companies, a California corporation, formed in 26®%erve as our holding company. The reincorpanatias completed effective June 30,
2006.

Prior to our initial public offering in Nember 2006, we were taxed as an S Corporationdiguoges of federal and state income taxes.
As a result of the offering, our S Corporation ssaterminated and we are now taxed as a C Corporatider federal and state tax laws. In
fiscal year 2006, we recognized a net deferrednrectax liability of $1.5 million resulting from thtermination of our S Corporation status.

We were founded over 40 years ago, andytodasist of a family of wholly owned companiesttbperate within the following segmel
for financial reporting purposes:

. Engineering ServicesOur Engineering Services segment includes thabsses of our subsidiary, Willdan, which provides
engineering-related services, and our subsidiargy® Geotechnical, which provides geotechnicalimegring services. The
segment also includes our subsidiaries, Public Agé&tesources (PARSs), which primarily provides stafto Willdan, and
Willdan Resource Solutions, which provides envirental engineering and environmental related sesvizgublic and priva
sector clients. Willdan is our largest subsidiand aurrently represents our core business. Contezenue for the Engineering
Services segment represented 81.7% and 84.1% ebosplidated contract revenue for fiscal year 2803 fiscal year 2006,
respectively.
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. Public Finance Service Our Public Finance Services segment consistiseobtisiness of our subsidiary, MuniFinanc
which offers financial and economic services toljgudigencies. Contract revenue for the Public FeeaBervices segment
represented 16.1% and 14.7% of our consolidatettaximevenue for fiscal year 2007 and fiscal \2&06, respectively.

. Homeland Security ServiceOur Homeland Security Services segment consigteedusiness of our subsidiary, American
Homeland Solutions, which offers homeland secuaitgl public safety consulting services. We formesl shibsidiary in fiscal
year 2004 and began operations in the second hfidical year 2005. Contract revenue for our Homel&ecurity Services
segment represented 2.2% and 1.2% of our consetidamntract revenue for fiscal year 2007 and figeal 2006, respectivel

Recent Developments
Litigation

In the third quarter of 2006, we obtainecbart ruling awarding us approximately $1.0 mitlion a claim for indemnity, recovering the
settlement amount and interest thereon and attda@syand costs in connection with a claim thaseuio fiscal year 2002. This ruling was
appealed by the cross-defendant and the rulingowaturned in February 2008. Because the claimearo2002 and our insurance carrier
previously paid the settlement amount, we were tbieplenish our insurance coverage by approxim&t0 million for that policy year.
Therefore, in the third quarter of 2006 we reflecaereceivable from our insurance company of agprately $1.0 million. Given that the
ruling was overturned, we reversed the receivamderaflected the expense in the fourth quartersobf year 2007.

Components of Income and Expense
Contract Revenue

We enter into contracts with our clientattbontain three principal types of pricing prooiss: fixed fee, time-and-materials and unit-
based. Contract revenue on our fixed fee contraaistermined on the percentage-of-completion ntkbased generally on the ratio of direct
costs incurred to date to estimated total direstscat completion. Many of our fixed fee contraas relatively short in duration, thereby
lowering the risks of not properly estimating trexgent complete. Revenue on our time-and-matearalsunit-based contracts are recognized
as the work is performed in accordance with spet#fims of the contract. A large percentage ofoomtracts are based on contractual rates
per hour plus costs incurred. Some of these cdstiaclude maximum contract prices, but the majasitthese contracts are not expected to
exceed the maximum.

Adjustments to contract cost estimatesmade in the periods in which the facts requiringhsievisions become known. When the
revised estimate indicates a loss, such loss idqed for currently in its entirety. Claims revengeecognized only upon resolution of the
claim. Change orders in dispute are evaluatedaass! Costs related to unpriced change ordersxgensed when incurred and recognitio
the related contract revenue is based on an ei@iuaitthe probability of recovery of the coststiEgted profit is recognized for unpriced
change orders if realization of the expected pofcine change order is assured beyond a reasodable.

Direct Costs of Contract Revenue

Direct costs of contract revenue consisharily of that portion of technical and nontectalisalaries and wages that has been incurt
connection with revenue producing projects. Dists of contract revenue also include productigperses, subconsultant services and
other expenses that are incurred in connection iitknue producing projects. Direct costs of cantravenue exclude
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that portion of technical and nontechnical salazied wages related to marketing efforts, vacatibabgdays and other time not spent directly
generating revenue under existing contracts. Sasts@re included in general and administrativeergps. Additionally, payroll taxes,
bonuses and employee benefit costs for all of essgnnel are included in general and administraikmenses since no allocation of these
costs is made to direct costs of contract reveNoeallocation of facilities costs is made to direosts of contract revenue nor is depreciation
and amortization allocated to direct costs. We agpalirect costs of contract revenue when incurred.

As a firm that provides multiple and dive@utsource services, we do not believe gross m&@ consistent or appropriate indicator of
our performance and therefore we do not use thasare as construction contractors and other typesnsulting firms may. Other
companies may classify as direct costs of contew@nue some of the costs that we classify as geaed administrative expenses. As a
result, our direct costs of contract revenue maybeccomparable to direct costs for other compaweidiser as a line item expense or as a
percentage of contract revenue.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses indbdeosts of the marketing and support staffsrotiarketing expenses, management and
administrative personnel costs, payroll taxes, Beawand employee benefits for all of our employasthe portion of salaries and wages not
allocated to direct costs of contract revenuetiosé employees who provide our services. Genetahdministrative expenses also include
facility costs, depreciation and amortization, pasfional services, legal and accounting fees amihéstrative operating costs. Within gene
and administrative expenses, "Other" includes esgesuch as professional services, legal and atfileguoomputer costs, travel and
entertainment and marketing costs. We expense gleareat administrative costs when incurred.

Until November 2006, we had not operated pablic company. As a public company, we havewaiticcontinue to incur significant
legal, accounting and other expenses that we dithoor as a private company, and we expect oueigiand administrative expenses to
increase as a result. Our management and othempeisneed to devote a substantial amount of tom@®mply with the requirements of be
a public company. Moreover, rules and regulati@mgfiblic companies have increased our legal arahfiial compliance costs and has made
some activities more time-consuming and costly.

Critical Accounting Policies

This discussion and analysis of financaidition and results of operations is based uparconsolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with generalgpaed accounting principles in the U.S., or GAAB.pfepare these financial statement
conformity with GAAP, we must make estimates arglagptions that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount @fme& and expenses in the reporting period. Ouabiesults may differ from these
estimates. We have provided a summary of our sggmf accounting policies in Note 2 to our consatiéd financial statements included
elsewhere in this report. We describe below th@sewanting policies that require material subjectiveomplex judgments and that have the
most significant impact on our financial conditiand results of operations. Our management evaltizss estimates on an ongoing basis,
based upon information currently available and arous assumptions management believes are reds@sabf the date of this report.

Contract Accounting

Applying the percentage-of-completion meklod recognizing revenue requires us to estimagarttlicated outcome of our long-term
contracts. We forecast such outcomes to the besirdfnowledge
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and belief of current and expected conditions amdeapected course of action. Differences betwegrestimates and actual results often
occur resulting in changes to reported revenuesandings. Such changes could have a material effectir future consolidated financial
statements.

Accounts receivable are carried at originabice amount less an estimate made for doubhtfabunts based upon our review of all
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. We deterthia allowance for doubtful accounts by identifytroubled accounts and by using
historical experience applied to an aging of actauur credit risk is minimal with governmentatigas. Account receivables are written
when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accowumivable previously written off are recorded wheeeived. For further information on
the types of contracts under which we perform ewvises, see "Business—Contract Structure" elsesvimethis report.

Goodwill Impairment Valuation

Goodwill primarily represents the excesshef purchase price paid for our Pubic FinanceiSesweporting unit over the estimated fair
value of the net identified tangible and intangib$sets acquired. We perform an annual reviewdridtarth quarter of each fiscal year, or
more frequently if indicators of potential impairmexist, to determine if the recorded goodwilingaired. We compare the fair value of the
reporting unit to its carrying value, including gbwill. To estimate the fair value, we use a valoratipproach based on a multiple of histol
cash flows, management's estimates of future dagis,fand other market data. This estimate ofvaiue is highly subjective and is based in
part on assumptions that could differ materialbnfractual results. If our evaluation indicates ti@dwill is impaired, we perform an
additional assessment to determine the extenteaitpairment based on the implied fair value ofdyeid compared with the carrying amot
of the goodwill. We did not recognize any impairmeharges in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Accounting for Claims Against the Company

We record liabilities to claimants for pedite and estimable claims on our consolidated lbalaheet, which is included in accrued
liabilities, and record a corresponding receivdiden our insurance company for the portion of tlena that is probable of being covered by
insurance, which is included in other receivabldge estimated claim amount net of the amount estidhi® be recoverable from the insure
company is included in our general and administea¢ixpenses. Determining probability and estimatiagn amounts is highly judgmental.
Initial accruals and any subsequent changes iestimates could have a material effect on our datated financial statements.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the ipels indicated, certain information derived front consolidated statements of operations
expressed as a percentage of contract revenue. ®mmay not add to the totals due to rounding.

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Statement of Operations Data
Contract revenu 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Direct costs of contract revent
Salaries and wage 32.7 31.4 31.1
Production expenst 2.C 1.8 2.3
Subconsultant servict 5.8 5.3 7.1
Total direct costs of contract rever 40.5 38.¢€ 40.4
General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes, employee bsi 31.¢ 33.: 33.¢
Facilities 5.8 5.2 5.2
Stocl-based compensatic 0.3 — 4.1
Depreciation and amortizatic 2.2 2.C 1.¢
Litigation accrua 1.3 2.3 4.C
Other 14.¢ 13.2 11.€
Total general and administrative expen 56.2 52.4 60.7
Income (loss) from operatiol 3.2 9.C (1.2
Other income (expense
Interest 0.€ (2.0 (0.9
Other, ne 0.8 3.2 —
Total other income (expens 1kt 2.2 (0.9
Income (loss) before income tax expe 4.7 11.2 (2.0)
Income tax expens 2.C 2.€ —
Net income (loss 2.7% 8.6% (2.)%

Fiscal Year 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year 2006

Contract revenue. Our contract revenue was $78.8 million for disgear ended December 28, 2007, with $64.4 militiributable to
the Engineering Services segment and $12.7 miflttibutable to the Public Finance Services segn@at Homeland Security Services
segment generated $1.7 million during this perf@ansolidated contract revenue increased $0.5 mjlbo 0.6%, from $78.3 million in the
fiscal year ended December 29, 2006. This increasedue primarily to an increase of $1.2 million;16.3%, and $0.8 million, or 82.0%, in
contract revenue of the Public Finance ServicesHormdeland Security Services segments, respectioébet by a decrease of $1.5 million,
or 2.3%, in contract revenue of the Engineering/i8es segment. Revenue in the Public Finance Sendgegment increased primarily due to
increased district formation services to fund isfracture projects as well as increased delinquemmyagement services in our district
administration services. Revenue in Homeland Sic8ervices has increased due to an increase iamargency response training courses,
particularly in Southern California. Our EngineegriBervices segment decline was due in part toltiwedswn in residential housing
construction in the western
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United States. A source of revenue in our EngimgeSiervices segment is fees assessed for buildimgits. In the latter part of fiscal year
2006 and throughout fiscal year 2007, we experigrceeduction in revenue from these fees becauseafownturn in the housing market.

Direct costs of contract revenue Direct costs of contract revenue was $31.9ionilfor the fiscal year ended December 28, 200t wi
$27.7 million attributable to the Engineering Seed segment and $3.4 million attributable to theliedrinance Services segment. The
additional $0.8 million is attributable to direasts of contract revenue for our Homeland Sec@éyvices segment. Direct costs of contract
revenue increased $1.7 million, or 5.6%, from $30ilBon for the fiscal year ended December 29,&00f this total increase, direct costs of
contract revenue increased $0.8 million, or 2.6%he Engineering Services segment and $0.6 milbo21.4%, in the Public Finance
Services segment. The remaining $0.3 million inseeaas attributable to the Homeland Security Sesviegment. Direct costs of contract
revenue as a percentage of contract revenue fdistted year ended December 28, 2007 increasefl.&%from 38.6% for the fiscal year
ended December 29, 2006, primarily because ouctdiests of contract revenue increased withoutreesponding increase in our revenue.
This is due in part to higher levels of non-salmaed wages cost which are passed through to kit lower mark-up than salaries and
wages.

Within direct costs of contract revenudasas and wages increased to 32.7% of contraetma for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2007 from 31.4% for the fiscal year ended Decen2Be2006. Comparing those same periods, subconsshkavices increased to 5.8% of
contract revenue from 5.3% of contract revenue.

General and administrative expensegseneral and administrative expenses increag&a 13 million, or 8.1%, to $44.3 million for the
fiscal year ended December 28, 2007 from $41.0anifor the fiscal year ended December 29, 2006 Was due primarily to increases of
$3.1 million and $0.2 million in general and admstnative expenses of the Engineering Services amddthnd Security Services segments,
respectively. General and administrative expensethe Public Finance Services segment and unéddaorporate expenses remained flat.
The Engineering Services segment increase inclad2s0 million change in our litigation accrualaasesult of the $1.0 million charge in
fiscal year 2007 for reversal of the $1.0 milli@tovery of a prior indemnity claim recorded durfisgal year 2006. The litigation accrual is
discussed above in "—Recent Developments-Litigdtidiso included in our general and administragx@enses are the costs associated
with management changes in the fiscal year endegmbker 28, 2007. These costs resulted in an inedaapproximately $0.6 million in
expenses for the payment of severance and othdogeepbenefits. Overall, general and administratixpenses as a percentage of contract
revenue increased to 56.3% in the fiscal year emam@mber 28, 2007 from 52.4% in the fiscal yealeenDecember 29, 2006.

The increases in general and administraiyeenses also resulted from (i) an increase afoappately $1.4 million, or 13.2%, in other
general and administrative expenses, which incl$fle$ million of legal fees related to the settletnaf the West Hollywood litigation and
(i) an increase of $1.5 million related to incredsosts associated with being a public compamuhath $0.5 million related to costs
associated with compliance with Section 404 ofS3hebanes-Oxley Act. The balance includes additiandit and legal fees and Board of
Director fees. Additionally, approximately $0.4 haih of the increase to other general and admatise expenses resulted from increased
insurance premiums, computer expenses and othesr aesociated with our increase in contract revefiset by decreases in marketing
expenses, bad debt expenses and other expenggzaXienately $0.9 million.

As discussed above under "—Componentsaufrire and Expense-Direct Costs of Contract Revemedo not allocate that portion of
salaries and wages not related to time spent tlirgeherating revenue to direct costs of contracenue.
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Income from operations. As a result of the above factors, income frqgrarations was $2.5 million for the fiscal year eshde
December 28, 2007 as compared to a $7.0 milliothiefiscal year ended December 29, 2006. Incoora fiperations as a percentage of
contract revenue, decreased to 3.2% in the fiseal gnded December 28, 2007 from 9.0% in the p&ar period.

Other income (expense).Other income (expense), net, decreased byrillibn, or 31.4%, to $1.2 million of income in tliscal year
ended December 28, 2007 from $1.7 million of incomthe fiscal ended December 29, 2006. This deer@as primarily due to $2.3 millic
of life insurance proceeds received in 2006 asaltref the death of our former chief executivaadf in May 2006, partially offset by a
decrease in interest expense of approximately i®illi®n primarily as a result of (i) the reversdl%0.6 million of accrued interest payable
associated with the West Hollywood litigation satikent and (ii) an increase in interest income pfaximately $0.5 million from invested
initial public offering proceeds.

Income tax expense.Effective as of the first day of trading of asommon stock, November 21, 2006, the S Corporatiatus of our
Company and the "qualified S subsidiary" statuswfsubsidiaries terminated and thereafter we webgect to federal and state income taxes
as a C Corporation. Thus we were taxed at reguolgmocate rates during the fiscal year ended Dece2®e2007 and the income tax expense
for fiscal year 2007 and 2006 is not comparable.

Fiscal Year 2006 Compared to Fiscal Year 2005

Contract revenue. Our contract revenue was $78.3 million for fiseal year ended December 29, 2006, with $65.8anikttributable
to the Engineering Services segment and $11.5omilittributable to the Public Finance Services ssgnOur Homeland Security Services
segment generated $0.9 million during this peri@ohsolidated contract revenue increased $11.0amjlbr 16.3%, from $67.3 million in the
fiscal year ended December 30, 2005. This was dogply to increases of $9.0 million, or 15.8%dail.2 million, or 12.0%, in contract
revenue of the Engineering Services and Publicriei@&ervices segments, respectively. In additi@@62vas the first fiscal year in which «
Homeland Security Services segment, which begaratipes in the second half of fiscal year 2005,egated notable revenue. Contract
revenue in the Homeland Security Services segmentased from $0.1 million in fiscal year 2005 foGmillion in fiscal year 2006. Overall
headcount increased to 670 as of December 29, 2006599 as of December 30, 2005, an increase .OP41

The growth in contract revenue for the Begring Services segment was due primarily to aswd demand for our existing services. To
respond to this demand, our Engineering Servicgsisat increased its total headcount to 542 as oédéer 29, 2006 from 481 as of
December 30, 2005, representing an increase o¥d. 2l respond to demand for our services in adtifigeographic areas of California, we
opened a new satellite office in Santa Rosa, Galidin May 2006. To respond to demand for ourisesvin our existing geographic
locations, in fiscal year 2006, we relocated andigranded our facilities in Bakersfield, Fresnod@eg, and Sacramento, California, as well
as in Phoenix and Tucson, Arizona and Hendersowadée In fiscal year 2005, we opened two new staealffice locations in Fresno and
Marysville, California.

The growth in contract revenue for our Rublnance Services segment also was due primarilycreased demand for our existing
services. To respond to this demand, we openechémoMuniFinancial locations in June 2006 and Sepwm™006 in Bellevue, Washington
and Orlando, Florida. Our Public Finance Serviaggrgent met this increased demand for services utithoreasing its total headcount. T¢
headcount was 78 as of December 29, 2006 whiclesepts no change from the total headcount as cfrbeer 30, 2005.

To provide for demand for our Homeland 3igiBervices, we opened a separate location fesdtservices in Anaheim, California in
March 2006.
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Direct costs of contract revenue Direct costs of contract revenue was $30.3ionilin the fiscal year ended December 29, 2006 wit
$27.0 million attributable to the Engineering Sees segment and $2.8 million attributable to theliedrinance Services segment. The
additional $0.5 million is attributable to direaiats of contract revenue for our Homeland Sec@#@gvices segment. This represented a total
increase of $3.1 million, or 11.4%, from $27.2 ioill in the fiscal year ended December 30, 2005h{3ftotal increase, direct costs of
contract revenue increased $2.7 million, or 11.0the Engineering Services segment and there wascnease in the Public Finance
Services segment. The remaining $0.4 million igkattable to the Homeland Security Services segniérgse increases were primarily the
result of the increased volume of activity thatgy@ted the increased contract revenue previoustudsed for our three operating segments.
Direct costs of contract revenue as a percentagerdfact revenue for the fiscal year ended Dece2®e2006 decreased to 38.6% from
40.4% for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2005.

Within direct costs of contract revenudasas and wages increased from 31.1% of conteaeirrue in the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2005 to 31.4% in the fiscal year edcember 29, 2006. Comparing those same periodspesultant services decreased
from 7.1% of contract revenue to 5.3% of contragenue. This shift within direct costs of contrastenue is primarily due to the
establishment of our subsidiary, PARs, in fiscalry2005. PARs provides in-house staffing servioa#/illdan by hiring professionals that
would in the past have been engaged as subconsuttaimdependent contractors. Numerous subcomgsilteghom we previously engaged as
independent contractors for projects within ouriBagring Services segment became employees of PRRsntract revenue and expenses
associated with the operation of PARs are includdtde Engineering Services segment.

General and administrative expensesseneral and administrative expenses increag@&® 2 million, or 0.5%, to $41.0 million in the
fiscal year ended December 29, 2006 from $40.8aniih the fiscal year ended December 30, 2005s Wais due primarily to increases of
$0.9 million and $0.9 million in general and admstnative expenses of the Engineering Services abtidFinance Services segments,
respectively, along with expenses of $0.4 millietated to the establishment of our Homeland Sec8etvices segment. These increases
were partially offset by a reduction of $2.0 milliattributed to unallocated corporate expensesefaéand administrative expenses as a
percentage of contract revenue decreased to 52146 ffiscal year ended December 29, 2006 from96Qri/the prior year period.

The increases in general and administrapenses in the Engineering Services and Pubi&née Services segments were due
primarily to increased costs related to the growtheadcount of engineers and other professioAdditionally, the $0.9 million increase in
the Engineering Services segment is net of a $ill@mreduction in our litigation accrual as a uéif the recovery of a prior indemnity
claim, which reduction was subsequently reversdfierfourth quarter of 2007. Employee related costisided in general and administrative
expenses such as payroll taxes, employee bertgditsises and that portion of salaries and wagetedala time not spent directly generating
revenue increased by $3.3 million, or 14.7%. Féedicosts increased by $0.6 million, or 16.2%a assult of additional needs created by the
increased headcount. Depreciation and amortizatimeased by $0.3 million, or 26.0%, as a resuliddfitional needs for leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipmenttgd by additional personnel. Other general andradirative expenses increased by
approximately $2.4 million, or 30.5%. This includasincrease of $0.2 million for bad debt expemsated to an Engineering Services
segment project, an increase of $0.3 million inkating expense primarily due to design and printiogts related to our name change in .
2006, an increase of $0.3 million in insurance puens and an increase in $0.2 million in computgremse related to increases in employee
headcount, and expenses related to our initialipoffering. As discussed above under "—Componehtacome and Expensebirect Cost:
of Contract Revenue," we do not allocate the adistsussed above to direct costs of contract revenue
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The $2.0 million decrease in unallocatepooate expense is primarily the result of a deses $2.7 million in stock-based
compensation expense in 2006 compared to 2005k-Bamed compensation expense in anticipation offiltial public offering of
$2.7 million was recorded in the fiscal year enBedember 30, 2005 in connection with stock issusuwdceing that period.

Income (loss) from operations.As a result of the above factors, income frgrarations was $7.0 million for the fiscal year eshde
December 29, 2006 as compared to a $0.7 milliox fiaen operations for the fiscal year ended Deceribe2005. Income from operations
as a percentage of contract revenue, increase@%6 i@ the fiscal year ended December 29, 2006 {tbth)% in the prior year period. As
discussed above, income from operations for thoalfigear ended December 29, 2006 includes a rexdfuictilitigation accrual of $1.0 million
as a result of the recovery in 2006 on a prior 2€l@n, which reduction was subsequently reveraetié fourth quarter of 2007, and a
decrease from fiscal year 2005 of $2.7 milliontwck-based compensation expense.

Other income (expense).Other income (expense), net increased by $@ldmto $1.7 million of income in the fiscal yeanded
December 29, 2006 from $0.6 million of expensehmfiscal year ended December 30, 2005. This wagdmarily to the receipt of
$2.3 million in life insurance proceeds as a resfithe death of our former chief executive offieed the recovery of $53,000 on legal
matters, partially offset by increased interestemge of $0.1 million. Interest expense increasedtdi$0.6 million accrued during fiscal year
2006 related to the West Hollywood litigation ahétincrease was partially offset by decreasedeéstes a result of lower outstanding
principal balances on our debt.

Income tax expense.In fiscal year 2006, income tax expense in@@dxy $2.0 million to $2.0 million from $17,000fiscal year 200&
This increase was due primarily to an increaseld $illion to record our deferred tax liability @Corporation federal and state tax rates
that resulted from the termination of our S Corpiorastatus upon completion of our initial publifesing. To a lesser extent, the increase in
income tax expense relates to calculating the eseoéar the post-IPO period using C Corporationrgd®s.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 28, 2007, we had $15.5 anilbf cash and cash equivalents. Our primary sewtéquidity are cash generated from
operations and borrowings under our revolving bieredit. We believe that our cash on hand, castegted by operating activities and
funds available under our credit facility will befScient to finance our operating activities fdrl@east the next 12 months.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows used in operating activities $@s3 million for the fiscal year ended DecemberZ®7 compared to cash flows provided by
operating activities of $6.3 million for fiscal ye2006 and $4.6 million for fiscal year 2005. Thasle flows used in operating activities in the
fiscal year ended December 28, 2007 were compatgtiigher than in fiscal year 2006 due primardythie payment of accrued liabilities
related to the West Hollywood litigation net of aim¢s paid for by our insurance company along wéjrpent of increased general and
administrative costs. In the 2006 period, net gashided by operating activities included $2.3 mill of life insurance proceeds received as a
result of the death of our former chief executifiécer in May 2006.

Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities e80..9 million for the fiscal year ended Decemt&rZ007 compared to $2.9 million for fiscal
year 2006 and $1.9 million for fiscal year 2005eTecrease of cash used in investing activitiefigoal year 2007 over fiscal year 2C
resulted primarily from the decrease in expend#doe equipment and leasehold improvements. Thisedese was offset by an increase of
$1.3 million in the net purchase of temporary l@tjiivestments with the proceeds from our initidblpioffering in November 2006. Fiscal
years 2006 and 2005 included higher than histolisetls of equipment and leasehold improvementshasges due to the establishmer
new office locations and the relocation of existaffice facilities, including our corporate offices
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities &&2.9 million for the fiscal year ended DecemtfarZD07 compared to cash flows provided
by financing activities of $14.2 million for thestial year ended December 29, 2006 and $0.1 mithiofiscal 2005. The net change between
fiscal years 2007 and 2006 for cash from finaneiatvities is $17.2 million, which is primarily thresult of net proceeds of $20.4 million
received in fiscal 2006 from the sale of stockum imitial public offering and the exercise of theerallotment option, partially offset by a
decrease of $2.3 million in distributions paid tders of our redeemable common stock. The fiseat 2007 distribution was our final S
corporation distribution to our stockholders andused the proceeds from our initial public offertogpay this amount. We will not make a
similar distribution in the future because we carlanger elect to be treated as an S corporatiash@ows provided by financing activities
for the fiscal year 2006 increased from fiscal y2@05 primarily as a result of an increase in metgeds from issuance of common stock of
$16.9 million as a result of our initial public effng and the exercise of the over-allotment opéind a decrease in net debt repayments of
$1.2 million, partially offset by an increase irettlistributions to holders of redeemable commoaokstd $3.8 million.

Outstanding I ndebtedness

We currently have a revolving line of cttedith a bank. We also finance insurance premiuynsriiering into unsecured notes payable
with insurance companies.

Under the terms of the credit agreementcareborrow up to $10.0 million from time to timp to and until January 1, 2010. Loans
made under the revolving line of credit will accinterest at either (i) the floating rate of 0.58%ow the prime rate in effect from time to
time or (ii) the fixed rate of 1.25% above LIBOR cair election. For prime rate loans, the interatg will be adjusted when each prime rate
change by the bank is announced and becomes effettie interest rate is subject to adjustmentdasechanges in our ratio of total funded
debt to EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreemedpon a default, the interest rate will be inceshby a default rate margin of 4.00%.
Upon the occurrence of an event of default underctkdit agreement, the bank has the option to ralkedebtedness then owed by us under
the credit agreement immediately due and payalble.révolving line of credit matures on JanuaryZ110.

Borrowings under the credit agreement aoeiised by all accounts receivable and other righpglyment, general intangibles, inventory
and equipment including those of our subsidiafiezeh subsidiary (except Public Agency Resourceskitmed an unconditional guaranty of
our obligations under the agreements. The cred@esgent also contains customary representationaffindative covenants, including
covenants to maintain a minimum tangible net waatminimum net income, a minimum asset coverage aad a maximum ratio of total
funded debt to EBITDA (each ratio as specificalgfided in the credit agreement). The credit agregrakso includes customary negative
covenants, including a covenant that prohibitsiticarrence of additional indebtedness by us orsobisidiaries other than purchase money
indebtedness not to exceed $2.0 million and indktetss existing on the date of the credit agreermaadta covenant that prohibits paymen
dividends on our stock. In addition, the creditesgment includes customary defaults for a credilifipcThere were no outstanding
borrowings under this agreement as of Decembe2@37.

We terminated our prior business loan agesd, promissory note and commercial security agesd with Orange County Business
Bank, or OCBB, on December 31, 2007. We termingtedoan agreement with OCBB in connection withehgering into of our new
revolving credit facility described above. We paalfees or penalties as a result of terminatingtivdoan agreement with OCBB.

In connection with the June 2006 acquisit the assets of an entity that developed anslated training courses, we entered into a
$150,000 note payable to the seller for a portibthe
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purchase price. The seller was hired as an employe@nnection with this acquisition. This relajgatty note bore interest at 6.0% and was
repaid during fiscal year 2007.

Contractual obligations

We have certain cash obligations and atbermitments which will impact our short- and loregrh liquidity. At December 28, 2007,
such obligations and commitments consisted of lemm debt, operating leases and capital leasestollbaing table sets forth our
contractual obligations as of December 28, 2007:

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5 Years
Long term debt(1 $ 1,116,000 $ 1,116,000 $ — % — 3 —
Operating lease 15,931,00 4,060,001 5,740,001 4,285,00 1,846,00!
Capital lease 675,00( 278,00( 349,00( 48,00( —
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 17,722,00 $ 5,454,000 $ 6,089,000 $ 4,333,000 $ 1,846,001

@) Long-term debt includes principal and interest pagta under our debt agreements assuming no addittonrowings or principal
payments.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation N&)."4Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes(FIN 48), an interpretation of FASB Statement afdficial Accounting Stands (SFAS) No. 109, whichifiés the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in ategmise's financial statements in accordance 8#AS No. 109, ‘Accounting for Income
Taxes(SFAS 109)". SFAS 109 does not prescribe a recogribreshold or measurement attribute for therfoia statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken in a tax reliversity in practice existed in the accounting ihcome taxes. To address that diversity,
FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS 109 byidafg a criterion that an individual tax positiorust meet for any part of the benefit of that
position to be recognized in an enterprise's fir@ratatements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guida on measurement, derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitingterim periods, disclosure and transition. H8lis effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. Our adoption of FIN 48 did renteha material effect on our consolidated finanstiatements.

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements(SFAS 157), defines fair value, establishes mmé&raork for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies; and expands disclosures about fair valuesoreanents. We adopted the provisions
of SFAS 157 effective as of the beginning of fisgahr 2008. We do not expect SFAS 157 to have armbimpact on our results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASN®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fio&l Liabilities" (SFAS 159)
which permits entities to choose to measure margnfiial instruments and certain other items atfawe that are not currently required tc
measured at fair value. SFAS 159 will be effectigeof the beginning of fiscal year 2008. The priovis of SFAS 159 are elective, and we
have not determined whether and to what extent ey implement its provisions or how if implement&dnight affect our financial
statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss to futurareings, to fair values or to future cash flows thay result from changes in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of a financial msbent may
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change as a result of changes in interest ratebaege rates, commaodity prices, equity prices dnédranarket changes. Market risk is
attributed to all market risk sensitive financiatruments, including long-term debt.

As a result of our initial public offeringie had cash and cash equivalents of $15.5 miflfoaf December 28, 2007. Of this amount,
$0.5 million was invested in the Orange County Bass Bank Money Market Fund and $14.2 million wagsted in cash in the Lehman
Brothers National Muni Money Fund Reserve Clasthdlgh these investments are subject to variabbedast rates, we do not believe we are
subject to significant market risk for these shertn investments.

We do not engage in trading activities dodhot participate in foreign currency transactionstilize derivative financial instruments.
Additionally, as of December 28, 2007, we did natér any outstanding debt under our revolving cifeaditity that bears interest at variable
or fixed rates.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

The financial statements and related fir@noformation, as listed under Item 15, appeaa separate section of this annual report
beginning on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in and/or disagretméth accountants on accounting and financiatld&ire during the year ended
December 28, 2007.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procesldefined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchandgeaisccontrols and other procedures that
are designed to ensure that information requirdzbtdisclosed by the issuer in the reports tHded or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported yvtfthitime periods specified in the SEC's rulesfamis. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlgigsrocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed in the reports that
we file or submit under the Securities Exchangeifetccumulated and communicated to our managemnehiding our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Tom Brisbin, and our Chief Final Officer, Kimberly Gant, as appropriate to alltimely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

In connection with the preparation of tAisnual Report, an evaluation was performed undestipervision and with the participation of
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief
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Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our diisure controls and procedures. Based on that &taiy our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclasaontrols and procedures were effective as okbser 28, 2007.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate control over finan@gbrting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 19434, as dednInternal control over financial reportingaiprocess to provide reasonable assur
regarding the reliability of our financial repoujifior external purposes in accordance with accagrmirinciples generally accepted in the
United States. Because of its inherent limitatiantgrnal control over financial reporting is noténded to provide absolute assurance that a
misstatement of our financial statements would feegnted or detected. Our management assesseffettéveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 28, 20@7nhkking this assessment, our management usedtdréacset forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis§iG®SQO") in Internal Control-Integrated Framewo@kur management has concluded
that, as of December 28, 2007, our internal corver financial reporting was effective based arsthcriteria.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

This annual report does not include arstdten report of the company's registered puldimanting firm regarding internal control oy
financial reporting. Management's report was nbjestt to attestation by the company's registerddipaccounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom that permit the company to provide only nggmaent's report in this annual
report.

Changes in Internal Controls

Based on our evaluation carried out in ed@oce with SEC Rule 15d-15(b) under the supemviaitd with the participation of our
management, including our President and Chief BreeOfficer and our Chief Financial Officer, wersduded that there were no changes
during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2007 our int@roontrols over financial reporting that have miatly affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal controls over firéad reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@rStatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2007 fiscat.ye

We have posted our Code of Ethical Conduabur website, www.willdangroup.com, under thedieg "Corporate Governance". The
Code of Ethical Conduct applies to our Chief Exe®uOfficer, and Chief Financial Officer. Upon resgt, we will provide any person with a
copy of the Code of Ethical Conduct. See "ltem dsiBess—Available Information.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@rStatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2007 fiscat.ye
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2007 fiscat.ye

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2007 fiscat.ye

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2007 fiscat.ye

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(@  The following documents are filed as part of tkEpart:

1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Wald Group, Inc. and report of independent auditeesrecluded in Item 8 of this annual report
and submitted in a separate section beginning ga pal:

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 28,&)December 29, 20! F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eachefiscal years in the thr-year period ended December 28, 2 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Common 8tatstockholders' Equity for each of the fiscalrgéa the three-year

period ended December 28, 2( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofiscal years in the thr-year period ended December 28, 2! F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6

2. Financial Statements Schedules

All required schedules are omitted becdhieg are not applicable or the required informat®shown in the financial statements or the
accompanying notes.

3. Exhibits
The exhibits filed as part of this annweart are listed in Item 15(b).
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(b)  Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed as a pefthis report:

Exhibit Number Exhibit Description

3.1  Articles of Incorporation of Willdan Group, Incndluding amendments thereto

3.2  Bylaws of Willdan Group, Inc.(1

4.1  Specimen Stock Certificate for shares of the Remjiss Common Stock(:

4.2  The Company agrees to furnish to the SecuritielsEasxchange Commission upon request a copy of ieattument with
respect to issues of lortgrm debt of Willdan Group, Inc. and its subsidiarithe authorized principal amount of which «
not exceed 10% of the consolidated assets of Wiil@eoup, Inc. and its subsidiari¢

10.1  Credit Agreement for $10,000,000 Revolving Liri€Coedit, dated December 28, 2007, between Willdaoup, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank Bank, National Association, relgtio the Credit Note in 10.2(
10.z  Revolving Line of Credit Note for $10,000,000tethDecember 28, 2007, by Willdan Group, Inc. wofeof Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association(*
10.2  Security Agreement, dated December 28, 2007,dmtWVilldan Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NagiloAssociation,
relating to the Credit Note in 10.2(
10.4  Continuing Security Agreement: Rights to Paynserd Inventory, dated December 28, 2007, betweeld&¥ilGroup, Inc.
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, relgtio the Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.2
10.51  Willdan Associates Incentive Bonus Plan, effectiley 1, 1996(1
10.61  MuniFinancial 2005 Bonus Plan(
10.71  Form of Tax Agreement Relating to S Corporationtfibsitions by the Registrant and its shareholdé:
10.81  Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
10.91 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement
10.107  Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement(
10.117  Amended and Restated Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Eyg#dStock Purchase Plan
10.12°  Form of Indemnification Agreement between Willdaro@, Inc. and its Directors and Officers
10.1:  Office Lease by and between Spectrum WaplesiStrte€, a California limited liability company, Spgum Lambert
Plaza, LLC, a California limited liability comparand The Willdan Group of Companies dated Octobe064 for the
principal office located at 2401 East Katella AvepAnaheim, California(1
10.1¢  First Amendment to Lease by and between 2401ll§atd C and The Willdan Group of Companies, daffedruary 27,
2006 for the principal office located at 2401 Kietélvenue, Anaheim, California(:
10.1¢  Second Amendment to Lease by and between 24@I&dtL C and The Willdan Group of Companies daatch 6,
2006 for the principal office located at 2401 Kietélvenue, Anaheim, California(.
10.1€  Warrant Agreement between Willdan Group, Inc. aredish Morgan Securities Inc.
10.17°  Indemnification Agreement between Willdan Groug.land Linda Heil(1
10.187 Agreement and General Release between Willdan Ginapand Richard Kopecky effective February 2002(2)
10.1¢  Settlement Agreement among the City of West Hollgd,dNilldan and Willdan Group, Inc., effective Mar6, 2007(3’
10.207  Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ind @homas D. Brisbin dated April 2, 2007
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10.217  Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ind Btallory McCamant dated July 23, 2007
10.22°  Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ind EKimberly D. Gant dated July 23, 2007
14.1  Code of Ethical Conduct of Willdan Group, Inc.
21.1  Subsidiaries of Willdan Group, Inc.(
23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*
24.1  Power of Attorney (included on signature page g
31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursudntRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Seesriixchange Act of
1934, as adopted pursuant to § 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002*
31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Secsrifiechange Act of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to § 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002*
32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and @hFinancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350adspted pursuant to
§ 906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002*

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

Filed herewith.
Indicates a management contract or compensatimggplarrangement.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InR&gistration Statement on Form S-1, filed with $eeurities and Exchange
Commission on August 9, 2006, as amended (File388:136444).

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
February 22, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
March 12, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
March 27, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
January 2, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Sedastand Exchange Commission
on March 27, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
April 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
July 26, 2007.
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SIGNATURES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsil, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Asim, State of California, on March 26,
2008.

WILLDAN GROUP, INC.

/s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
Date: March 26, 200

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, thatleperson whose signature appears below constantkappoints Tracy
Lenocker and Mallory McCamant his/her attorneydaict; each with the power of substitution, for Hiew in any and all capacities, to sign
any amendments to this Report on Form 10-K andedHe same, with Exhibits thereto and other doent® in connection therewith with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratjfgimd confirming all that each of said attorney$aict, or substitute or substitutes may
or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidny the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ THOMAS D. BRISBIN March 26, 2008
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas D. Brisbir

/s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT March 26, 2008
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President

Kimberly D. Gani

/s/  WIN WESTFALL March 26, 2008
Director
Win Westfall
/s/ LINDA L. HEIL March 26, 2008
Director
Linda L. Heil
/sl W. TRACY LENOCKER March 26, 2008
Director

W. Tracy Lenocke

/s/ KEITH W. RENKEN March 26, 2008
Director

Keith W. Renker

/s/ CHELL SMITH March 26, 2008
Director
Chell Smith
/s/ JOHN M. TOUPS March 26, 2008
Director
John M. Toup:t
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Willdan Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itiaalance sheets of Willdan Group, Inc. and sidrgés as of December 28, 2007 and
December 29, 2006, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, redeemable common stoclstactholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the fiscal years in the three-yearqueended December 28, 2007. These consolidatenciadsstatements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility expess an opinion on these financial statemersescban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an afuitie Company's internal control over finangigborting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theuss and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Willdan Group, Inc. and subsidiarieDatcember 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006, ané$éts of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the fiscal years in theehyear period ended December 28, 2007, in confgrwith U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/sl KPMG LLP

March 25, 2008
Los Angeles, California
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Liquid investment:

Cash, cash equivalents and liquid investm

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $372,000 and $492,000
December 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006, resplyc

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billimggncompleted contrac

Other receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Equipment and leasehold improvements,
Goodwill
Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Excess of outstanding checks over bank bal.
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnargancompleted contrac
Accrued final distribution payable to holders ofieemable common stoc
Current portion of notes payat
Current portion of notes payable to related pa
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Current portion of deferred income ta

Total current liabilities

Notes payable to related part

Capital lease obligations, less current por
Deferred lease obligatior

Deferred income taxes, net of current por

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 stardg®rized, no shares issued and
outstanding
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 40,000,000 shartk®@zed; 7,150,000 and 7,148,000
shares issued and outstanding at December 28,8@DDecember 29, 2006, respectiv
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Total stockholders' equi

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

December 28, 2007

December 29, 2006

$ 15,511,000 $ 20,633,00
1,300,00! —
16,811,00 20,633,00
15,090,00 14,270,00
7,336,001 7,960,001

157,00( 4,505,00!

2,067,001 1,858,001
41,461,00 49,226,00
3,354,001 4,372,001

2,911,001 2,911,001

500,00( 599,00(

$ 48,226,00 $ 57,108,00

$ 633,000 $ 257,00(
1,136,00! 1,270,001

5,314,00 14,106,00

941,00( 1,222,001

— 3,150,001

1,088,00! 993,00(

— 75,00(

176,00( 170,00(

2,002,001 1,262,00!
11,290,00 22,505,00

— 46,00(

283,00( 348,00(

606,00( 547,00(

395,00( 398,00(

12,574,00 23,844,00

71,00( 71,00(

32,796,00 32,552,00
2,785,001 641,00(
35,652,00 33,264,00

$ 48,226,000 $ 57,108,00



See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtstents.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Contract revenu

Direct costs of contract revent
Salaries and wagt
Production expenst
Subconsultant servict

Total direct costs of contract rever

General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes and employeditse
Facilities
Stocl-based compensatic
Depreciation and amortizatic
Litigation accrual (reversa
Other

Total general and administrative expen
Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income (expense
Interest
Other, ne
Total other income (expense
Income (loss) before income tax expe
Income tax expens
Net income (loss

Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic and dilutes

Weightec-average shares outstandi
Basic
Diluted

Pro Forma Data (unaudited):

Pro forma provision for income tax

Pro forma net income (los

Pro forma earnings per common share, basic anted

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.

F-3

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005
$ 78,798,000 $ 78,339,00 $ 67,263,00
25,769,00 24,602,00 20,918,00
1,568,00! 1,496,00! 1,529,00!
4,600,001 4,168,001 4,745,00!
31,937,000 30,266,00 27,192,00
25,061,00 26,051,00 22,720,00
4,546,001 4,046,001 3,481,001
209,00( 38,00( 2,737,001
1,747,001 1,584,00! 1,257,00!
1,049,00! (1,049,00) 2,686,001
11,727,00 10,359,00 7,935,001
44,339,00r 41,029,00 40,816,000
2,522,00 7,044,001 (745,000
499,00( (773,000 (630,000
666,00( 2,470,001 11,00¢(
1,165,001 1,697,00! (619,000
3,687,00 8,741,001 (1,364,00()
1,543,00! 2,021,001 17,00(
$ 2,144,000 $ 6,720,000 $ (1,381,00)
" s
$ 03¢ $ 137 $ (0.35)

7,149,001
7,150,001

BB

4,900,001
4,900,001

2,596,00!
6,145,00i
1.2t

3,994,001
3,994,001

549,00(
(1,913,00)
(0.4¢)

& BB




WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK
AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balances for redeemable common stock at
December 31, 200

Shares of redeemable common stock purchased a
canceled in connection with buy/sell stock g
Shares of redeemable common stock issued in
connection with buy/sell stock pl:

Stock-based compensatic

Receipt of stockholder receivat

Decrease in the difference between the aggregate
redemption amount and the carrying amount for
redeemable common sto

Distributions

Net loss

Balances for redeemable common stock at
December 30, 200

Shares of redeemable common issued in connecti
with buy/sell stock plai

Receipt of stockholder receivat

Reclassification from common stock to additional
paic-in capital

Decrease in the difference between the aggregate
redemption amount and the carrying amount for
redeemable common sto

Distributions to holders of redeemable common s
Reclassification of remaining undistributed retaine
earnings upon conversion from S Corporation to C
Corporation

Shares of common stock issued in connection witt
initial public offering, net of offering cos
Stock-based compensatic

Net income

Balances for stockholders' equity at December 29,
2006

Shares of common stock issued in connection witk
employee stock purchase pl

Reduction of offering costs in connection with it
public offering.

Stock-based compensatic

Net income

Balances for stockholders' equity at December 28,
2007

Common Stock

Additional Paid-in Receivable from Retained

Shares Amount Capital Stockholders Earnings Total
3,760,000 $ 5,209,000 $ — 3 (16,000 $ 6,284,000 $ 11,477,00
(6,000 (9,000) — — (16,000 (25,000
954,00( 3,594,001 — (38,000 — 3,556,,00!
— 2,737,001 — — — 2,737,,00
— — — 16,00( — 16,00(
— (390,001) — — 390,00( —
— — — — (1,720,00i) (1,720,00i)
— — — — (1,381,00i) (1,381,001
4,708,001 11,141,00 — (38,000 3,557,001 14,660,00
5,00( 18,,00( — — — 18,00(
— — — 38,00( — 38,00(
— (11,112,00) 11,112,,00 — — —
— — (264,000 — 264,00( —
— — — — (8,634,00i) (8,634,00i)
— — 1,266,00! — (1,266,00i) —
2,435,001 24,00( 20,400,00 — — 20,424,00
— — 38,00( — — 38,00(
— — — — 6,720,001 6,720,001
7,148,001 71,00( 32,552,00 — 641,00( 33,264,,00
2,00( — 25,00( — — 25,00(
— — 10,00( — — 10,00(
— — 209,00( — — 209,00(
— — — — 2,144,001 2,144,001
7,150,000 $ 71,000 $ 32,796,00 $ — $ 2,785,000 $ 35,652,00
= N | . |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss 2,144,000 $ 6,720,000 $ (1,381,00i)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,755,001 1,584,00! 1,274,001
Loss (gain) on sale of equipme 28,00( (23,000 24,00(
Allowance for doubtful accoun 212,00( 481,00( 321,00¢(
Stock-based compensatic 209,00( 38,00( 2,737,001
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (1,032,001 (3,071,000 (2,508,001)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billiomygncompleted contrac 624,00( (731,000) (45,000
Other receivable 4,348,00! (2,090,001 (3,184,00i)
Prepaid expenses and other current a (209,000 (535,00() (458,000
Other asset 69,00( (8,000) (115,000)
Accounts payabl (134,000 226,00( (90,000
Accrued liabilities (8,792,000 1,026,00! 7,356,001
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earn@rgancompleted contrac (281,000 (134,000) 396,00(
Deferred income taxe 737,00( 1,602,00! (38,000
Deferred lease obligatior 59,00( 178,00( 276,00(
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi (263,000 6,273,001 4,565,00!
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of equipment and leasehold improven (654,000 (2,822,000 (1,885,001)
Proceeds from sale of equipmi 35,00( 5,00( 28,00(
Purchase of other ass: — (200,001) (15,000
Purchase of liquid investmer (22,800,00) — —
Proceeds from sale of liquid investme 21,500,001 — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,919,000 (2,917,001 (1,872,001
Cash flows from financing activitie
Changes in excess of outstanding checks over balakde 376,00( (115,000) 176,00(
Payments on notes payal (1,210,001) (1,482,00i) (1,964,001
Proceeds from notes payal 1,184,001 973,00( 2,134,001
Borrowings under line of cred 418,00( 11,700,00 29,390,00
Repayments of line of crec (418,000 (11,700,00) (31,053,00)
Principal payments on capital lea: (175,000 (158,00() (148,000
Payments on liabilities to stockhold¢ — (3,000 (255,00()
Proceeds from stockholder receivak — 38,00( 16,00(
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable common — 18,00( 3,556,001
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in theainptiblic offering — 22,646,00 —
Proceeds from sales of common stock under emplstgei purchase ple 25,000 — —
Distributions to holders of redeemable common s (3,150,001 (5,484,000 (2,720,001
Payments to acquire retired stc — — (25,000
Refund (payment) of offering cos 10,00( (2,222,00i) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (2,940,000 14,211,00 107,00(
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. (5,122,001 17,567,00 2,800,001
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the 20,633,000 3,066,001 266,00(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the $ 15,511,000 $ 20,633,000 $ 3,066,001

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc

Interest $ 84,000 $ 143,000 $ 239,00(
Income taxe: 902,00( 72,00( 79,00(
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing enash€ing activities
Equipment acquired under capital lea $ 147,000 $ 386,000 $ 211,00(
Amounts receivable from issuance of redeemable comstock — — 38,00(
Note payable issued in connection with acquisitbasset: — 150,00( —

Accrued final distributions to holders of redeengatdbmmon stoc — 3,150,001 —
See accompanying notes to consolidated financsisients
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005
1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
Nature of Business

Willdan Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (trar@any) is a provider of outsourced services tollsama mid-sized public agencies in
California and other western states. Outsourcirapkss these agencies to provide a wide range ofajged services, without having to inc
and maintain the overhead necessary to develdinstafi-house. The Company provides a broad rafigewices to public agencies
including civil engineering, building and safetyngees, geotechnical engineering, financial ancheaaic consulting, and disaster
preparedness and homeland security. Clients pilyrarnsist of cities, counties, redevelopment agenavater districts, school districts and
universities, state agencies, federal agencieatiaty of other special districts and agencies, tabdl governments.

Willdan Group, Inc., a Delaware corporatinthe successor to The Willdan Group of ComparaeCalifornia corporation. Willdan
Group, Inc. was formed during fiscal year 2006a asibsidiary of The Willdan Group of Companies, andlune 30, 2006, the assets and
liabilities of The Willdan Group of Companies weransferred to Willdan Group, Inc. Willdan Groupg¢l had no operations prior to this
transfer of assets and liabilities. Since the tatisn occurred between entities under common obritre transfer was recorded at historical
carrying values in a manner similar to the poolgnterests method of accounting. This resulted feclassification of $11.1 million from
common stock to additional paid-in capital sinoe Willdan Group, Inc. common stock has a par valu&0.01 per share and The Willdan
Group of Companies common stock had no par valeesiHafter, Willdan Group refers to both Willdano@p, Inc. and its predecessor, The
Willdan Group of Companies.

On November 27, 2006, Willdan Group comgaleits initial public offering (IPO). The IPO reged in the sale by Willdan Group of
2,000,000 shares of common stock at an initialroféeprice per share of $10.00, generating grogsgeds to Willdan Group of $20.0 millic
A selling shareholder also sold 900,000 share®wiaon stock in the IPO. The aggregate proceedsilitda Group, net of underwriter's
discounts and other offering costs, were approxéga16.4 million. On December 20, 2006, WilldaroGp sold an additional 435,000 sh:
of common stock at $10.00 per share as a resthieafinderwriter exercising its over-allotment opti@his resulted in additional net proceeds
of approximately $4.0 million to Willdan Group. Wihn Group issued stock warrants in connection i¢hlPO to the underwriter for the
right to purchase 290,000 common shares at 120%edPO share price, or $12.00 per share. The wiarkeecame exercisable on
November 20, 2007 and expire on November 20, 2

Effective as of the completion of the IRfle Company's book value stock purchase plan fdd Group's redeemable common stock
was terminated and all of the outstanding shar&§itdlan Group's common stock previously subjedtt® terms of this plan are no longer
redeemable by Willdan Group. This resulted in dassification of the Company's equity to permaresqtity as of the completion of the IPO.

Prior to completion of the IPO, Willdan Gmwas owned by its employees, board members ardvice provider. With the consent of
its stockholders, Willdan Group had elected torbated as an S Corporation for purposes of fedeighstate income taxes. Effective as of the
first day of trading of Willdan Group's common dtpblovember 21, 2006, the S Corporation statusitextad and thereafter the Company
has been subject to federal and state income texa<C Corporation.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements ielthe accounts of Willdan Group Inc. and its whollvned subsidiaries, Willdan,
MuniFinancial, Arroyo Geotechnical, American HommedeSolutions, Willdan Resource Solutions and Pubtiency Resources. Willdan
Resource Solutions was formed and began operatidistal year 2007. All significant intercompanglénces and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Years

The Company operates and reports finanegallts on a fiscal year of 52 or 53 weeks endimthe Friday closest to December 31. Fi:
years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were-week years. All references to years in the naieohsolidated financial statements representlfiszas.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Liquid I nvestments

All highly liquid investments purchased kwén original maturity of three months or less@esidered to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents include money market funds andwsdeposit accounts.

As of December 28, 2007, cash equivalerdiside $0.5 million invested in the Orange CountisiBess Bank Money Market Fund and
$14.2 million invested in Lehman Brothers Natiokklni Money Fund Reserve Class. The $1.3 milliohqoid investments is invested in
various auction rate securities. Outstanding chatkscess of cash on deposit have been reclabsifieurrent liabilities.

The Company from time to time may be expdsecredit risk with its bank deposits in excekthe FDIC insurance limits and with
uninsured money market investments. The Companybtaasxperienced any losses in such accounts dievéit is not exposed to any
significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalent

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As of December 28, 2007 and December 286 2he carrying amounts of the Company's caslm eqaivalents, liquid investments,
accounts receivable, costs and estimated earningsciess of billings on uncompleted contracts, ratheeivables, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, excess of outstanding checks avdrlalance, accounts payable, accrued liabilitidg)gs in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts, and accruebdistaibution payable to holders of redeemable gmn stock approximate their fair val
because of the relatively short period of time lestavthe origination of these instruments and #agiected realization. The carrying amounts
of notes payable to stockholders and other notgalpa approximate their fair values since the teanescomparable to terms currently offe
by local lending institutions for loans of simi@rms to companies with comparable credit risk.

Segment I nformation

Willdan Group is a holding company with sixbsidiary companies. The Company presents segnfermation externally consistent
with the manner in which the Company's chief opegat
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

decision maker reviews information to assess perdoice and allocate resources. Willdan Group, the.holding company, performs all
administrative functions on behalf of the subsigieompanies, such as treasury, legal, accountifgrmation systems and human resources,
and earns revenue that is only incidental to thiwities of the enterprise. As a result, Willdano@p, Inc. does not meet the definition of an
operating segment. Four of the six subsidiary congsaare aggregated into one segment since theydiavar characteristics including the
nature of services, the methods used to providécgsrand the type of customer. The remaining tasiliary companies each comprise an
operating segment.

Off-Balance Sheet Financings and Liabilities

Other than lease commitments, legal coeticges incurred in the normal course of business.eanployment contracts, the Company
does not have any off-balance sheet financing geraents or liabilities. In addition, the Comparpddicy is not to enter into derivative
instruments, futures or forward contracts. Finatiy, Company does not have any majority-owned didré@s or any interests in, or
relationships with, any special-purpose entitieg tre not included in the consolidated finandialesnents.

Accounting for Contracts

The Company enters into contracts witltlients that contain three principal types of pricprovisions: fixed fee, time-and-materials,
and unit-based. Revenue on fixed fee contracexisgnized on the percentage-of-completion metheddgenerally on the ratio of direct
costs incurred to date to estimated total direstscat completion. Revenue on time-and-materiadsuait-based contracts are recognized as
the work is performed in accordance with specé#itrts of the contract. Revenue for amounts that baee billed but not earned is deferred
and such deferred revenue is referred to as billingxcess of costs and estimated earnings ormyleted contracts in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Adjustments to contract cost estimatesyade in the periods in which the facts requiringhstevisions become known. When the
revised estimate indicates a loss, such loss idqed for currently in its entirety. Claims revengeecognized only upon resolution of the
claim. Change orders in dispute are evaluatedaass! Costs related to unpriced change ordersxg@ensed when incurred and recognitio
the related contract revenue is based on an ei@iuaitthe probability of recovery of the coststiEmted profit is recognized for unpriced
change orders if realization of the expected pofcine change order is assured beyond a reasodable:.

Applying the percentage-of-completion metlod recognizing revenue requires the Company timage the indicated outcome of its
long-term contracts. The Company forecasts suctoougs to the best of its knowledge and belief ofesut and expected conditions and its
expected course of action. Differences betweelCtrapany's estimates and actual results often @esutting in changes to reported revenue
and earnings. Such changes could have a mateieat eh future consolidated financial statements.

Direct costs of contract revenue consisharily of that portion of technical and nontectalisalaries and wages that has been incurt
connection with revenue producing projects. Digrdts
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

of contract revenue also include production expgnsgbconsultant services and other expensesrthatarred in connection with revenue
producing projects.

Direct costs of contract revenue excluge ffortion of technical and nontechnical salaried wages related to marketing efforts,
vacations, holidays and other time not spent dirggnerating revenue under existing contractsh®wosts are included in general and
administrative expenses. Additionally, payroll taxeonuses and employee benefit costs for all Cagnparsonnel are included in general
and administrative expenses in the accompanyingatolated statements of operations since no allmtaff these costs is made to direct
costs of contract revenue. No allocation of faeiitcosts is made to direct costs of contract reeeror is depreciation and amortization
allocated to direct costs. Other companies maysifiaas direct costs of contract revenue some @ttsts that the Company classifies as
general and administrative costs. The Company esqsedirect costs of contract revenue when incurred.

Accounts receivable are carried at originabice amount less an estimate made for douhtfabunts based upon a review of all
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Managedetatmines the allowance for doubtful accountsdeyiifying troubled accounts and by
using historical experience applied to an agingawfounts. Credit risk is minimal with governmergatities. Accounts receivables are written
off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of actoereivables previously written off are recoraduen received.

The value of retainage is included in actsueceivable in the accompanying consolidateahiiral statements. Retainage represents the
billed amount that is retained by the customeadoordance with the terms of the contract, geneuattil performance is substantially
complete. At December 28, 2007 and December 2%,288 Company had retained accounts receivaldpmioximately $46,000 and
$54,000, respectively.

Leases

All of the Company's office leases are sifted as operating leases and rent expense isdedlin facilities expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Some dé#se terms include rent concessions and rentatigcatlauses, all of which are taken into
account in computing minimum lease payments. Mimmiease payments are recognized on a stréiighbasis over the minimum lease te
The excess of rents recognized over the amountsaobmally due pursuant to the underlying leasesflscted as a liability in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thetosprovements that the Company makes to the tkaffice space is capitalized as
leasehold improvements.

Equipment and Leasehold | mprovements

Equipment and leasehold improvements atedtat cost less accumulated depreciation andtiaatoon. Equipment under capital leases
is stated at the present value of the minimum lpagenents. Depreciation and amortization on equipiraee calculated using the straidjine
method over estimated useful lives of two to fieass. Leasehold improvements and assets undealdapies are amortized using the
straight-line method over the shorter of estimateeful lives or the term of the related lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Following are the estimated useful livesdu®d calculate depreciation and amortization:

Category Estimated Useful Life
Furniture and fixture 5 years
Computer hardwar 2 years
Computer softwar 3 years
Automobiles and truck 3 years
Field equipmen 5 years

Equipment and leasehold improvements afiewed for impairment whenever events or changesraumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&aeoverability of assets to be held and used ssored by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted faagk flows expected to be generated by the d®t. carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an imgaitroharge is recognized by the amount by whiclcéngying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of costs farevalue of the assets acquired. The goodwitlich has an indefinite useful life, is not
amortized, but instead tested for impairment atlaanually or more frequently if events and cirstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to tkieet that the carrying amount exceeds the agaéat\salue.

Accounting for Claims Against the Company

The Company records liabilities to claingafur probable and estimable claims on its conatdid balance sheet, which is included in
accrued liabilities, and records a correspondingik@ble from the insurance company for the portibthe claim that is probable of being
covered by insurance, which is included in otheeieables. The estimated claim amount net of thewrhestimated to be recoverable from
the insurance company is included in general anuirgdtrative expense.

Stock Options

The Company accounts for compensationaelat stock options using the fair value methodamounting. The estimated fair value of
the fully vested stock options granted upon conmuedf the IPO was expensed and the fair valub®funvested stock options granted is
being amortized over the vesting period of theseksbptions.

Redeemable Common Stock

Prior to fiscal year 2005, the Company ggiped no compensation expense related to shawgexdisinder its book value stock purchase
plan based on changes in the formula price duhiegemployment period since the employees madesdaslyve investment that would be at
risk for a reasonable period of time.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Book value shares granted under the puecpls during fiscal year 2005 were consideredatgetbeen granted in contemplation of the
IPO, and, accordingly, compensation cost was rexbfadr the difference between the formula value thedestimated fair value of those
shares.

In the evaluation of the fair value of 8teck considered to be issued in contemplatioh@i1®PO, the Company considered the proximity
of the issuance to the offering, intervening evemarket conditions, transfer restrictions and eiserdates, and profitability and financial
condition of the Company.

Income Taxes

Prior to November 21, 2006, for federabime tax purposes, the Company filed as an S Cdiponaherein the Company elected and
the stockholders consented to be taxed in a maméar to partners in a general partnership. Sfederal income taxes on S Corporation
income are the responsibility of the individualcitioolders, no federal tax provision is includedha accompanying consolidated financial
statements for periods prior to November 21, 2@ tective January 1, 2002, the Company electecettvdnted as an S Corporation for state
tax purposes and has provided for state incomes taixéhe applicable S Corporation statutory rasenfdanuary 1, 2002 through November
2006.

Effective upon the first day of tradingtbé Company's common stock as a result of the iF&OS Corporation status was terminated and
thereafter the Company has been subject to fedathstate income taxes as a C Corporation. Thetaffeecognizing the Company's
deferred tax liability using C Corporation fedezald state tax rates instead of S Corporation &ateates is included in the fiscal year 2006
tax provision in the accompanying consolidatedestent of operations. The Company has revised litsileéion of the deferred tax liability
recognized upon termination of the Company's S @uaitpn status and the effects of the resultingsiens to the Company's previously
reported consolidated financial statements foffideal year 2006 are immaterial. The effects arfobigws:

As Reported Revision Revised
Income tax expens $ 2,452,000 $ (431,000 $ 2,021,001
Net income 6,289,00! 431,00( 6,720,001
Earning per shar 1.2¢ 0.0¢ 1.37
Current portion of deferred income ta 1,693,00! (431,000 1,262,00!
Total current liabilities 22,936,00 (431,000 22,505,00
Retained earning 210,00( 431,00( 641,00(
Total stockholders' equi 32,833,00 431,00( 33,264,00

Income taxes are accounted for under thetasd liability method. Deferred tax assets &tllities are recognized for the future tax
consequences of temporary differences betweerirtapdial reporting basis and tax basis of the Camisaassets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enaaxetes expected to apply to taxable income iry#ags in which those temporary differer
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effedeferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Operating Cycle

In accordance with industry practice, antewnalizable and payable under contracts, whicheséend beyond one year, are included in
current assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financiatements in conformity with generally acceptedoaicting principles in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfeetttae reported amounts of assets and liatsliied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahatatements. Estimates also affect the reportesliats of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation N&)."4Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes(FIN 48), an interpretation of FASB Statement afdficial Accounting Stands (SFAS) No. 109, whichifiés the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in ategmise's financial statements in accordance 8#AS No. 109, ‘Accounting for Income
Taxeg(SFAS 109)". SFAS 109 does not prescribe a reciognibreshold or measurement attribute for therfoia statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken in a tax reliversity in practice existed in the accounting ihcome taxes. To address that diversity,
FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS 109 byidafg a criterion that an individual tax positiorust meet for any part of the benefit of that
position to be recognized in an enterprise's fir@rstatements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guida on measurement, de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitinigterim periods, disclosure and transition. H8lis effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. Our adoption of FIN 48 did renteha material effect on our consolidated finanstiatements.

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements(SFAS 157), defines fair value, establishes mmé&raork for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and expands disclosures about fair valuesoreanents. We adopted the provisions
of SFAS 157 effective as of the beginning of fispaér 2008. We do not expect SFAS 157 to have arfmhimpact on our results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASTN®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fio&l Liabilities" (SFAS 159)
which permits entities to choose to measure margnfiial instruments and certain other items atfalwe that are not currently required tc
measured at fair value. SFAS 159 will be effectigeof the beginning of fiscal year 2008. The priovis of SFAS 159 are elective, and we
have not determined whether and to what extent ey implement its provisions or how if implement&dnight affect our financial
statements.
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Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005

3. EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Equipment and leasehold improvements cbosike following:

December 28, 2007

December 29, 2006

Furniture and fixture $ 4,917,000 $ 4,825,00!
Computer hardware and softwz 4,518,00 4,184,00
Leasehold improvemen 900,00 880,00
Equipment under capital leas 787,00( 757,00(
Automobiles, trucks, and field equipme 412,00( 401,00(
Total 11,534,00 11,047,00
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (8,180,00) (6,675,00)
Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, $ 3,354,000 $ 4,372,00

I I

Included in accumulated depreciation andrimation is $189,000 and $181,000 of amortizatielated to equipment held under capital

leases in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively.
4. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgn

Accrued bonuse

Paid leave ban

Compensation and payroll tax
Accrued lega

Accrued workers' compensation insura
Litigation accrua

Accrued interes

Income taxes payab

Other

Total accrued liabilitie:

5. STOCK OPTIONS

As of December 28, 2007, the Company hasstvare-based compensation plans, which are deddrddow. The compensation cost that
has been charged against income for stock optgmued under these plans was $209,000 and $38,0f8cfl years 2007 and 2006,

respectively. Prior to fiscal year 2006, the Comypdid not issue stock options.

December 28, 2007

December 29, 2006

$ 202,000 $ 2,150,00t
1,746,00 1,861,00!
1,495,00! 1,556,00!
92,00( 41,00(

19,00( 50,00(

235,00( 5,951,001

52,00( 1,006,00!

425,00( 429,00(
1,048,00! 1,062,00!

$ 5,314,000 $ 14,106,00
I I

2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In June 2006, the Company's board of dirscidopted the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan ("20@&'Pland it received stockholder appro
The Company re-submited the 2006 Plan to its stldens for post-IPO approval at the 2007 annualkstolders' meeting and it was

approved. The 2006 Plan will terminate ten yeatey dfie board of directors approved it. The 20GGPlas 300,000
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5. STOCK OPTIONS (Continued)

shares of common stock reserved for issuance tGaongpany's directors, executives, officers, empmgyeonsultants and advisors. No
participant may be granted an option to purchaseian 100,000 shares in any fiscal year. Optioag be granted with exercise prices at
no less than fair market value at date of grarth wésting provisions and contractual terms deteeahby the compensation committee of the
board of directors on a grant-by-grant basis. QOtigranted under the 2006 Plan may be "non-stgtstock options" which expire no more
than ten years from the date of grant or "incensioek options” as defined in Section 422 of therimal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
Upon exercise of non-statutory stock options, thenBany is generally entitled to a tax deductionttenexercise of the option for an amount
equal to the excess over the exercise price diafhenarket value of the shares at the date of@ser The Company is generally not entitle
any tax deduction on the exercise of an incentigeksoption. Option awards provide for acceleratesting if there is a change in control (as
defined in the 2006 Plan). Through December 287260tions granted under the 2006 Plan consisLOfaD0 shares and 23,000 shares for
incentive stock options and non-statutory stockomst respectively.

The fair value of each option is calculatisthg the Black-Scholes option valuation model tiss the assumptions noted in the
following table. Expected volatility is based uplistorical volatility of "guideline companies” simthe length of time the Company's shares
have been publicly traded is shorter than the exeplear contractual term of the options. The exgkttem of the option, taking into account
both the contractual term of the option and thea$ of employees' expected exercise and expeoste/psting termination behavior is
estimated based upon the "shortcut" approach. Uhéeapproach, the expected term is presumed theomidpoint between the vesting d
and the end of the contractual term. The risk-fege for periods within the contractual life of thetion is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant. The assumstiare as follows:

2007 2006
Expected volatility 31%-34% 31%-36%
Expected dividend 0% 0%
Expected term (in year 5.0(-6.0C 1.0¢-5.2¢
Risk-free rate 4.34%-5.26% 4.54%-4.71%

A summary of option activity under the 20@&n as of December 28, 2007 and December 29, 20@6changes during the fiscal years
then ended is presented below. The intrinsic vafube options is $0, based on the Company's dastiock price of $7.11 on December 28,
2007.

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Exercise Contractual
Options Price Term (Years)
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 28,000 $ 10.1¢ 4.2
Granted 205,00( 9.4C 9.4
Exercisec — — —
Forfeited or expirel — — —
Outstanding at December 28, 2( 233,000 $ 9.5(C 8.€
| |
Vested at December 28, 20 33,000 % 10.2:2 4.2
| |
Exercisable at December 28, 2( 33,000 $ 10.22 4.2
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Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Exercise Contractual
Options Price Term (Years)
Outstanding at December 30, 2( — 3 — —
Granted 28,00( 10.1¢ 4.2
Exercisec — — —
Forfeited or expirel — — —
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 28,00 $ 10.1¢ 4.2
| |
Vested at December 29, 20 20,00 $ 10.0C 1.9
| |
Exercisable at December 29, 2( 20,00C $ 10.0C 1.¢

A summary of the status of the Companyts/ested options as of December 28, 2007, and cbahgeng the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006, is pexséetow:

Weighted-Average Grant-

Nonvested Options Options Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 29, 2( 8,00C $ 3.91
Granted 205,00( 3.7¢€
Vested (23,000 3.9t
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 28, 2( 200,00( 3.7¢

|

Nonvested at December 30, 2( —  $ —
Grantec 28,00( 2.2¢
Vested (20,000 1.64
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 29, 2( 8,00( 3.91

As of December 28, 2007, there was $589d3@0tal unrecognized compensation cost relatewtorested stock options. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 2.4 years. The total fair value of vesbptions granted during the fiscal years
ended December 28, 2007 and December 29, 20062680 and $33,000, respectively.

AMENDED AND RESTATED 2006 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The Company adopted its Amended and Resgi186 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to allow déiginployees the right to purchase
shares of common stock, at semi-annual intervdth, teir accumulated payroll deductions. The pleeived stockholder approval in June
2006. The Company re-submited the plan to its $iolcers for post-IPO approval at the 2007 annurdkdtolders' meeting and obtained
approval. A total of 300,000 shares of the Commaogimmon stock have been reserved for issuance thelplan, with no more than
100,000 shares being issuable in any one calemdar y
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The plan has semi-annual periods beginning on dachary 1 and ending on each June 30 and begioniegch July 1 and ending on each
December 31. The first offering period commencedrebruary 10, 2007 and ended on June 30, 2007.

Participants make contributions under tta@ jpnly by means of payroll deductions each paymliod. The accumulated contributions
will be applied to the purchase of shares. Shaik®e&purchased under the plan on or as soonadipable after, the last day of the offering
period. The purchase price per share will equal 85%e fair market value of a share on the lagtafasuch offering period.

The Company's Amended and Restated 2006dyse Stock Purchase Plan is a non-compensatony Ataa result, stock-based
compensation expense will not be recognized irtiogldo this plan.

6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LINE OF CREDIT

Notes payable, excluding amounts due &tedlparties, consist of the following:

2007 2006

Unsecured notes payable to insurance compani@satioce

insurance premiums, interest at 5.63% for the notes

outstanding as of December 28, 2007 and 5.97%&nobtes

outstanding as of December 29, 2006, payable irtimon

principal and interest installments of $111,00@tiyh

September 200 $ 1,088,000 $  990,00(
Note payable for automobile, -month term, bearing interes

at 7.20%, payable in monthly principal and interest

installments of $1,000 through July 2007, secured b

Company vehicle — 3,00(¢

Notes payable, excluding amount due to relatedgsarall
current $ 1,088,000 $  993,00(

The Company has a credit agreement anldizderevolving line of credit note and securityesgment (collectively with the credit
agreement and the note, the "agreements") withs/#felfgo Bank, National Association.

Under the terms of the credit agreemertGbmpany can borrow up to $10.0 million from titndime up to and until January 1, 2010.
Loans made under the revolving line of credit witrue interest at either (i) the floating rat® &0% below the Prime Rate in effect from
time to time or (i) the fixed rate of 1.25% abduBOR, at the election of the Company. The interast is subject to adjustment based on
changes in the Company's ratio of total funded teeBIBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement)ob@a default, the interest rate will be
increased by a default rate margin of 4.00%. Upenciccurrence of an event of default under theitcagdeement, Wells Fargo has the option
to make all indebtedness then owed by the Compadgnthe agreements immediately due and payabéer&iolving line of credit matures
on January 31, 2010.
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Borrowings under the credit agreement aoeised by all accounts receivable and other righpglyment, general intangibles, inventory
and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaBash subsidiary of the Company (except Public AgéResources) has signed an
unconditional guaranty of the Company's obligationder the agreements. The credit agreement algaine customary representations and
affirmative covenants, including covenants to maimta minimum tangible net worth, a minimum nebime, a minimum asset coverage ratio
and a maximum ratio of total funded debt to EBIT[®&ch ratio as specifically defined in the credite®ment). The credit agreement also
includes customary negative covenants, includingvenant that prohibits the incurrence of additiondebtedness by the Company or its
subsidiaries other than purchase money indebtedméds exceed $2.0 million and indebtedness egstin the date of the credit agreement,
and a covenant that prohibits payment of dividesrdthe Company's stock. In addition, the credieagrent includes customary defaults for a
credit facility. There were no outstanding borrogsrunder this agreement as of December 28, 2007.

The Company terminated its business loaeexgent, promissory note and commercial securitgeagent (the "prior agreement") with
Orange County Business Bank on December 31, 208¥ Cbmpany terminated the prior agreement in cdiorewith its entering into the
new revolving credit facility with Wells Fargo. Ti@ompany paid no fees or penalties as a resudtrofibating the prior agreement with
Orange County Business Bank.

In connection with the June 2006 acquisit the assets of an entity that developed arigeted training courses, the Company entered
into a $150,000 note payable to the seller forriquoof the purchase price. The seller was hied £ompany employee in connection with
this acquisition. This related party note, whichswepaid during fiscal year 2007, bore intere§%thad an outstanding balance of $121,000
as of December 29, 2006.

7. BOOK VALUE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Prior to the completion of the IPO, the Qxamy had a program whereby selected employeesacoemployees, officers and director
the Company could purchase redeemable shares Gltimpany's stock. The purpose of the program wasawide for continuity of
management by establishing a plan under whichttrek ®f the Company would remain in the hands o&éhindividuals who were or would
be actively responsible for the continued succé#iseoCompany and who desired to own such stock.eMisting stockholders approved
additional sales of stock and the Company's boadirectors determined which individuals and hownynahares each of these individuals
could purchase. Company employees and directoredwrost of the Company's stock and every shateeog€bmpany's stock was covered
by the stock buy/sell agreement (the Agreement).

The stockholders could not transfer ownigrsfithe stock other than to hold title to thecktin a trust for the benefit of the stockholder
and/or his or her spouse, children or estate. &twdkers who wished to sell the stock had to temdenffer of the stock to the Company or to
another Company stockholder. Termination of empleynwith the Company did not trigger a requirentergell the stock back to the
Company. However, the Company had the right tongmase any of the stock at any time from any stolcidr.
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7. BOOK VALUE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN (Continued)

All purchases and repurchases of stock weced based on the same formula and there wasstmg period. The Company had vari
options with respect to repurchasing the stockdesdi by the stockholders as specified in the Agesénif the repurchase of stock was
involuntary (i.e., the Company demands the repwehdhen the Company was required to immediatyygash for 100% of the shares.

During fiscal year 2005, individuals purshd 954,000 shares of the Company's redeemable @ostock at $3.77 per share pursuant to
awards of stock purchase rights granted by the @owip board of directors. At the time of the steales, the Company was considering
becoming a public company in addition to other femifi financing that would not have resulted in @@mpany becoming publicly traded.
During the Company's year-end close process inuaepr2006, the Company determined it was posditdeéCompany could be within one
year of an IPO. Accordingly, the fiscal year 20@tes of common stock were considered to be in cgplegion of the Company's propos
IPO and the difference between the aggregate dstihfiair value of the shares and the aggregateui@rimased price was recorded as an
expense in fiscal year 2005. The expense totaledrfiZlion and is included as stock based compémsatithin general and administrative
expenses.

In the evaluation of the fair value of #teck considered to be issued in contemplatioh@iPO, the Company considered the
profitability and financial condition of the Comparthe proximity of the issuance to the offeringtervening events, transfer restrictions and
exercise dates.

As discussed in Note 1, upon completiothefIlPO, the Agreement was terminated and the Coygatock is no longer redeemable by
the Company.

8. COMMITMENTS
Leases

The Company is obligated under capitaldsder certain furniture and office equipment tigpire at various dates through the year
2011.

The Company also leases certain officdif@s under noncancelable operating leases thateat various dates through the year 2014
and is committed under noncancelable operatingtefs the lease of computer equipment and autdesothirough the year 2009.
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8. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Future minimum rental payments under capitd noncancelable operating leases are summaagzéallows:

Capital Operating
Fiscal year
2008 $ 278,000 $ 4,060,001
2009 228,00( 3,051,00!
2010 121,00( 2,689,001
2011 48,00( 2,437,001
2012 — 1,848,001
Thereafte — 1,846,00!
Total future minimum lease paymel $ 675,000 $ 15,931,00
I
Amount representing maintenar (160,000
Amount representing interest (at rates ranging fdon%% to
10.0%) (56,000
Present value of net minimum lease payments under
capital lease 459,00(
Less current portio 176,00(
$ 283,00(

Rent expense and related charges for conaremmaintenance for all facility operating lease2007, 2006 and 2005 was
approximately $3,337,000, $2,957,000 and $2,483 @pectively.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a qualified profit shaptan (the Plan) pursuant to Code Section 401 (a)qaiadified cash or deferred arrangement
pursuant to Code Section 401(k) covering substintfi employees. Employees may elect to contebup to 50% of compensation limitec
the amount allowed by tax laws. Company contrimgiare made solely at the discretion of the Comipayard of Directors. The Company
made matching contributions of approximately $268@,86277,000 and $231,000 during fiscal years 220@6 and 2005 respectively.

The Company has a discretionary bonus folaregional managers, division managers and othedetermined by the Company
president. Bonuses are awarded if certain finamgoals are achieved. The financial goals are m¢dtin the plan; rather they are
judgmentally determined each year. In addition,Bbard of Directors may declare discretionary besus key employees and all employ
are eligible for what the Company refers to as'liwe hand" bonus program, which pays awards fostanding performance. Bonus expense
for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 totaled agprately $202,000, $2,687,000, and $3,322,000 resfedyg, of which approximately
$202,000 and $2,150,000 is included in accruedlilias at December 28, 2007 and December 29, 2@&pectively.
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8. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Post employment health benefits

In May 2006, the Company's board of directgpproved providing lifetime health insurancearage for the Company's chief executive
officer and his spouse as of that date and fomidew of the Company's former chief executive adficMrs. Heil, who is also a Company
board member. Additionally, the board approved thedakurance coverage for Mrs. Heil's two deperslentil they reach the maximum age
for dependent coverage under the Company's hewltineince policy.

During fiscal year 2006, the Company reedrdeneral and administrative expense equal tprésent value of the expected payments
for health insurance coverage for Mrs. Heil anddependents. As of December 28, 2007, $134,00®lisded in accrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet relatdistobligation. The Company also began to amartzgeneral and administrative
expense, the present value of the expected payrfterisst employment health coverage for the Comigachief executive officer and his
spouse over the period from approval of the betefihe estimated date of retirement. During figesdr 2007, this chief executive officer
communicated his intent to retire and the Companggectively adjusted the amortization and as afeb#er 28, 2007 the entire amount
related to this executive has been amortized.

9. INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxesmprised of:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Current federal taxe $ 650,00 $ 200,00 $ —
Current state taxe 156,00( 219,00( 55,00(
Deferred federal taxe 570,00( 1,282,00! —
Deferred state taxe 167,00( 320,00( (38,000
Total $ 1,543,000 $ 2,021,000 $ 17,00¢(

The provision for income taxes for fiscaby 2005, due to the lack of federal income tagsalting from the Company's S Corporation
election and due to state taxes, differs from theunt
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Fiscal Years 2007, 2006 and 2005

9. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

computed by applying the statutory federal incomerate to income before provision for income tadd® sources and tax effects of the
differences for fiscal year 2007 and 2006 are Hsvis:

2007 2006
Computed "expected" federal income tax expe $ 1,253,000 $ 2,972,001
Permanent difference—federal income tax effectanf-n
taxable life insurance procee — (765,000
Other permanent differenc 81,00( 87,00(
Current and deferred state income tax expense fienet
of federal benefi 217,00( 145,00(
Tax effect of earnings not subject to federal inedax due
to S Corporation electic — (1,931,001
Federal and state tax effect of S to C Corporatamversiot — 1,543,00!
Other (8,000 (30,000
Total $ 1,543,000 $ 2,021,001
I I

Current deferred tax asse

December 28, 2007

The tax effects of temporary differencest thive rise to significant portions of the neteteéd tax liabilities are as follows:

December 29, 2006

Accrued litigation judgmer $ 127,000 $ 2,517,001
Accounts receivable allowan: 206,00( 268,00(
Other accrued liabilitie 643,00( 882,00(
976,00( 3,667,00!
Current deferred tax liabilitie:

Deferred revenu (2,978,001 (3,242,00)
Litigation receivable — (1,687,00i)
(2,978,00i) (4,929,00)

Net current deferred tax assets (liabili

$  (2,002,00)

$  (1,262,00)

I I
Deferred tax assets, net of current port

Equipment and leasehold improvement depreci: $ 162,00 $ 94,00(
Stock options 23,00( —
185,00( 94,00(

Deferred tax liabilities, net of current portic
Goodwill amortizatior (580,001 (492,00()
Net deferred tax liability, net of current porti $ (395,000 $ (398,00()
I I
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Management believes it is more likely timan that the Company will realize the benefit of tteferred tax assets existing at
December 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006.. Furti@ragement believes the existing net deductiblpaeany differences will reverse
during periods in which the Company generatesaetiile income. There can be no assurance, howbaethe Company will generate
taxable earnings or any specific level of contigugarnings in the future.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has three segments: Engine8emngces, Public Finance Services and Homelandrg&ervices. The Engineering
Services segment includes Willdan, Arroyo GeotecdiniPublic Agency Resources and Willdan Resoudteti®ns. The Engineering
Eervices segment performs services for a broaderahgublic agency clients and offers a full conmpést of engineering, building and saft
construction management, and municipal planningises to clients throughout the western Unitedestathe Public Finance Services
segment, which consists of MuniFinancial, providepertise and support for the various financingybégues employed by public agencies to
finance their operations and infrastructure aloritfp ¥he mandated reporting and other requiremesgs@ated with these financings. The
Homeland Security Services segment, which consfsfgnerican Homeland Solutions, provides homelasxlisity and public safety
consulting services to cities, counties and relatedicipal service agencies.

The accounting policies applied to deteertime segment information are the same as thoseilued in the summary of significant
accounting policies. There were no intersegmemssair any of the fiscal years in the three-yeaiopeended December 28, 2007.
Management evaluates the performance of each sédpased upon income or loss before year-end peaiocmbonuses and income taxes.
Certain segment asset information including expenes for longhived assets has not been presented as it is pottegl to or reviewed by ti
chief operating decision maker. In addition, entegwide service line contract revenue is notudeld as it is impracticable to report this
information for each group of similar services.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial information with respect to tleportable segments and reconciliation to the anso@morted in the Company's consolidated
financial statements follows:

Homeland
Engineering Public Finance Security Unallocated
Services Services Services Corporate Intersegment Consolidated Total
Fiscal Year 2007:
Contract revenu $ 64,372,00 $ 12,684,00 $ 1,742,000 $ — $ — $ 78,798,00
Depreciation and Amortizatic 1,352,00! 336,00( 59,00( — — 1,747,001
Interest expense (incom (494,000 (26,000 21,00( — — (499,00()
Segment profit before bonuses and income tax
expense 2,076,00! 1,765,00! (68,000 (86,000 — 3,687,001
Annual bonuse — — — — — —
Income tax expens 875,00( 727,00( (25,000 (34,000 — 1,543,001
Net income (loss 1,200,00! 1,038,00! (42,000 (52,000(1) — 2,144,001
Segment asse 26,852,00! 10,658,00 1,048,001 29,040,00 (2) (19,372,00) 48,226,00
Fiscal Year 2006:
Contract revenu 65,887,001 11,495,00 957,00( — — 78,339,00
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,215,001 333,00( 36,00( — — 1,584,001
Interest expens 732,00( 12,00( 29,00( — — 773,00(
Segment profit (loss) before bonuses and incol
tax expenst 8,213,00! 1,554,001 (322,000) 1,446,001 — 10,891,00
Annual bonuse 1,531,001 337,00¢( 34,00( 248,00( — 2,150,001
Income tax expens 2,093,001 460,00( (134,000 (398,000) — 2,021,001
Net income (loss 4,589,001 757,00( (222,000 1,596,001 (1) — 6,720,00!
Segment asse 36,926,00! 10,158,00 480,00( 29,639,00 (2) (20,095,00) 57,108,00
Fiscal Year 2005:
Contract revenu 56,908,00! 10,265,00 90,00( — — 67,263,00
Depreciation and amortizatic 969,00( 283,00( 5,00( — — 1,257,001
Interest expens 578,00( 40,00( 12,00( — — 630,00(
Segment profit (loss) before bonuses and incol
tax expenst 3,583,00! 1,118,00! (352,000 (2,779,000 — 1,570,001
Annual bonuse 1,967,001 340,00( 20,00( 607,00( — 2,934,001
Income tax expens 3,00( 1,00( 1,00( 12,00( — 17,00(
Net income (loss 1,613,001 777,00( (373,000 (3,398,000(1) — (1,381,001
Segment asse 29,757,00! 9,013,00! 97,00( 13,385,00 (19,455,00) 32,797,00
1) The following sets forth the amounts included ie tiet income (loss) that was Unallocated Corpdatéscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005:
2007 2006 2005
Unallocated net income (lost
Annual bonuse $ — % (248,000 $ (607,000
Special bonuse — (104,000) (42,000
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes and employedfitse — (366,00() —
Life insurance proceect — 2,250,001 —
Post employment health benel — (162,000) —
Stocl-based compensatic — (38,000 (2,737,000
Income tax (expense) bene 34,000 398,00( (12,000
Other (86,000 (134,000) —
Total $ (52,000 $ 1,596,000 $ (3,398,001
| | |

Most types of overhead costs incurred by Willdanuy, Inc. are allocated to the Company's segmelaiwever, because management makes operating deceil assesses
performance of the Company's segments based amcfadanformation before bonuses, the bonuses fidldah Group, Inc. employees were not allocatethosegments. The stock
compensation expense incurred during fiscal ye@B628corded in anticipation of the IPO and the medrom life insurance proceeds received durincgfiyear 2006 were not allocated

for a similar reason.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

) The following sets forth the assets that are inetlith Unallocated Corporate as of December 28, 20@7December 29, 2006.
2007 2006

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 15,299,000 $ 20,331,00!
Liquid investment: 1,300,00! —
Prepaid expense 1,524,001 1,406,001
Intercompany receivable 4,352,001 955,00(
Other receivable 69,00( 130,00(
Equipment and leasehold improvements, 952,00( 1,227,00I
Investments in subsidiaric 5,354,001 5,354,001
Other asset 190,00( 236,00(
Total $ 29,040,000 $ 29,639,00!
| |

11. OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in subconsultant services expeitstiee accompanying consolidated statements afatipas are expenses for services prov
to the Company by an affiliate of a member of tlen@any's board of directors totaling $23,000 fer pleriod during fiscal year 2006 and
$68,000 for fiscal year 2005 in which this individiserved as a board member.

Included in other general and administexBxpenses in the accompanying consolidated staterokoperations are expenses for
services provided to the Company by an affiliata 6drmer member of the Company's board of diredimaling $32,000 for the period
during 2006 and $42,000 for fiscal year 2005 inchithis individual served as a board member.

12. PRO FORMA INCOME TAXES (UNAUDITED)

Upon completion of the IPO (as more fulgsdribed in Note 1), the Company ceased to quadifgn S corporation. Thus, the Company
is taxed at regular corporate rates. For infornmatipurposes, the Company's consolidated stateroEofserations include pro forma
adjustments for income taxes at a 40% rate thatdiwave been recorded if the Company were a C Catipa for fiscal years 2006 and
2005. The pro forma tax provision for fiscal ye@08 reflects the nontaxability of life insurancegeeds and the pro forma tax provision for
fiscal year 2005 reflects the non-deductibilitystdck based compensation expense recorded inpatian of the IPO.

13. LIFE INSURANCE PROCEEDS

On May 15, 2006, the Company's co-founaer ehief executive officer, Dan W. Heil, passed yawiehe Company carried two life
insurance policies on Mr. Heil totaling $2.3 mitlian coverage. The $2.3 million was received iodlsyear 2007 and is included in other, net
under other income (expense) in the accompanyingatwated statement of operations for the fisealryended December 29, 2006.
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Claims and Lawsuits

The Company is subject from time to timevaoious claims and lawsuits, including those atiggrofessional errors or omissions, that
arise in the ordinary course of business againsisfthat operate in the engineering and consuftinfessions. The Company carries
professional liability insurance, subject to certdeductibles and policy limits, for such claimglasy arise and may from time to time
establish reserves for litigation that is considgueobable of loss.

The Company was involved in a dispute whi City of West Hollywood, California over a projén 2002. This matter concerned a
construction project in the City of West Hollywoddr the improvement of Santa Monica Boulevard. phgject required the reconstruction
of approximately three miles of roadway. The citylahe general contractor claimed that the desigrQtompany prepared was inadequat:
the volume and type of traffic on Santa Monica Beakd. The city also claimed that the Company diatitecontrol the costs of the project
to contractor claims for extra costs.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, followingral in the Los Angeles County Superior Court, jilngy rendered a verdict against the Company
and awarded damages to the city in the amount &fi®@lion, including attorney's fees, interest amsts. The Company's insurance comg
posted bonds and filed an appeal with respectisanhtter. During the appeal process, interestugcton the outstanding judgment at the rate
of 10% per annum. As of December 30, 2005, the Gomipelieved that approximately $3.2 million of themages was covered by our
professional liability insurance policy. Therefone fiscal year 2005, we expensed $2.7 millionhi$ judgment, and recorded related interest
expense of $0.4 million related to the West Hollpdaase.

In the third quarter of 2006, the Compabiamed a court ruling with respect to an unrelatiadém that also arose in fiscal year 2002
awarding the Company approximately $1.0 millionsociaim for indemnity, recovering the settlemenbant and interest thereon and
attorney fees and costs. At that time, the Compefigcted an additional receivable of approximatkly0 million from the Company's
insurance company because the Company was al#elenish our insurance coverage by approximatel§y 8illion for the 2002 policy year
since the Company's insurance carrier had prevwiqet the settlement amount. In the Company'saa@ed balance sheet as of
December 29, 2006, the Company therefore reflextedal liability of $6.9 million and related reeables of $4.2 from the insurance
company.

The Company entered into a settlement aggag effective March 6, 2007, with the City of Wekllywood relating to the Santa
Monica Boulevard matter. Pursuant to the settleragreement, both parties agreed to a full mutuease of all claims related to the lawsuit
and appeal, subject to dismissal of the appeathReparty admitted any fault or liability relatedthe claims in the lawsuit. Under the terms
of the settlement agreement, the Company agrepayt$6.2 million in cash to the city. Our insuragoenpany paid $3.2 million of the
settlement amount and the Company paid $3 millldre Company also agreed to provide an $85,000tdethe city for future services. Tl
future services are to be provided at the Compahgl!s prevailing rates and can be chosen in tigis @ble discretion from services provided
by us to our municipal clients. The city must use ¢redit before December 31, 2012. As of DecerBBeR007, the city has used $21,133,
leaving a balance of $63,867.
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In February 2008, the ruling for the unteth$1.0 million indemnity claim was appealed by thoss-defendant and overturned by the
court. Because the ruling was overturned, the Compaversed the receivable the Company recordéddal year 2006 and reflected an
expense of $1.0 million in the fourth quarter aichl year 2007.

Rescission Offer

The Company's redeemable common stockdsdueng fiscal year 2005 may not have been exdropt registration or qualification
under federal and state securities laws and thep@oynmay not have obtained the required registratoy qualifications. Accordingly, the
Company made rescission offers to the holdersesfalshares during July 2006 as permitted undefo@aé securities law. Each of the
holders who purchased shares during fiscal yeab #@€vocably rejected the Company's rescissioaroffrior to the rescission offer,
management believed there was only a remote liketitthat a rescission offer would be accepted lyyohthe affected stockholders and p
to issuing the fiscal year 2005 consolidated fin@rgtatements, all of the holders of these shiaaélsrejected the rescission offer, which
further substantiated management's belief thalikbkhood of rescission was remote. Further, mamagnt believes that the 2005 stock
offering satisfied the Section 4(2) exemption & Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based dimtfied nature of the offering, the level of
knowledge and relationships of the purchasers lamihformation provided by the Company to the passhs.

15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The tables below reflect selected quartiefigrmation for the fiscal years ended December22®7 and December 29, 2006.

Fiscal Three Months Ended

March 30, 2007 June 29, 2007 September 28, 2007 December 28, 200

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Contract revenu $ 19,26¢ $ 21,18 $ 19,680 $ 18,66
Income (loss) from operatiol (1,107%) 1,68¢ 1,65%(3) 284(1)
Income tax (benefit) expen (203) 754 77¢ 114
Net income (loss (250 1,05¢ 1,05: 282
Earnings (loss) per shai
basic and dilute: $ (0.09) $ 0.1t % 0.1t % 0.0
I I I I

Weightec-average shares outstandi
Basic 7,14¢ 7,14¢ 7,15( 7,15(
Diluted 7,14¢ 7,151 7,161 7,151
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15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (Co ntinued)

Fiscal Three Months Ended

March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006 September 29, 2006 December 29, 200

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Contract revenu $ 17,82. $ 20,27: % 20,95 % 19,29
Income (loss) from operatiol 1,01z 1,84¢ 2,912(3) 1,27:
Income tax (benefit) expen 13 25 41 1,94%(4)
Net income (loss 88¢€ 3,87¢2) 2,69¢ (744)
Earning (loss) per shar
basic and dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ 08 % 051 % (0.19
| | | |

Weightec-average shares outstandi

basic and dilute: 4,711 4,718 4,718 5,46¢
Pro forma data
Pro forma provision for income tax 36C 662 1,09¢ 47¢
Pro forma net income (los 53¢ 3,24z 1,64¢ 72C
Pro forma earnings per common shi
basic and dilute: $ 011 $ 0.6 $ 03 $ 0.1t
I I I I

Q) On February 25, 2008, the appeals court set dseledurt's favorable ruling for the $1.0 milliomich. This subsequent event resulted

in the Company concluding that the $1.0 millionaigable was no longer considered to be probabtmkéction. Accordingly, the
Company reversed the receivable and increasedtlitiy expense in its fiscal year 2007 consolidéiteghcial statements.

(2) Net income for the fiscal three months ended Jin&B06 includes $2.3 million in life insurance peeds related to the death of our

co-founder and former chief executive officer inyWR006 (as more fully described in Note 13).

3) Income from operations for the fiscal three morghded September 29, 2006 includes a reductiotigation accrual expense of

$1.0 million related to a court ruling awarding thempany approximately $1.0 million on a claim ffelemnity in connection with a

claim that arose in fiscal year 2002 (as more fdégcribed in Note 14).

(4) Theincome tax provision for the fiscal three maenginded December 29, 2006 includes approximatef/ i$ilion related to the
Company's conversion from an S Corporation to eo€p@ration. Effective upon the first day of tradioigthe Company's common
stock as a result of its IPO, the Company's S Gatjm status was terminated and thereafter thep@omis subject to federal and
state income taxes as a C Corporation. Approxim&el5 million of the income tax provision is thiéeet of recognizing the

Company's deferred tax liability using C Corporatiederal and state tax rates instead of S Coriporatate tax rates. The Company's
policy for accounting for income taxes is describetlote 2. The Company's presentation of pro foimeame tax data is described in

Note 12.
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Articles of Incorporation of Willdan Group, Incndluding amendments thereto

Bylaws of Willdan Group, Inc.(1

Specimen Stock Certificate for shares of the Reggiss Common Stock(:

The Company agrees to furnish to the SecuritiesEaxchange Commission upon request a copy of ieatiument with
respect to issues of lortgrm debt of Willdan Group, Inc. and its subsidiarithe authorized principal amount of which «
not exceed 10% of the consolidated assets of Wiil@eoup, Inc. and its subsidiari¢

Credit Agreement for $10,000,000 Revolving LifeCoedit, dated December 28, 2007, between WillBaoup, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, relatinghie Credit Note in 10.2(¢

Revolving Line of Credit Note for $10,000,000tethDecember 28, 2007, by Willdan Group, Inc. wvofeof Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association(*

Security Agreement, dated December 28, 2007, detWVilldan Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NagdioAssociation,
relating to the Credit Note in 10.2(

Continuing Security Agreement: Rights to Payraamd Inventory, dated December 28, 2007, betweellavilGroup, Inc.
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, reatio the Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.2

Willdan Associates Incentive Bonus Plan, effectiday 1, 1996(1

MuniFinancial 2005 Bonus Plan(

Form of Tax Agreement Relating to S Corporationtiiisitions by the Registrant and its shareholdg!

Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement(

Amended and Restated Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Eyg@#dStock Purchase Plan

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Willdaro®, Inc. and its Directors and Officers

Office Lease by and between Spectrum WaplestStre€, a California limited liability company, Speum Lambert
Plaza, LLC, a California limited liability compamnd The Willdan Group of Companies dated Octobe2@84 for the
principal office located at 2401 East Katella AvenAnaheim, California(1

First Amendment to Lease by and between 2401lldatd C and The Willdan Group of Companies, dakedbruary 27,
2006 for the principal office located at 2401 Kietélvenue, Anaheim, California(.

Second Amendment to Lease by and between 24@EI&dtL C and The Willdan Group of Companies datatch 6,
2006 for the principal office located at 2401 Kietélvenue, Anaheim, California(.

Warrant Agreement between Willdan Group, Inc. anet®ish Morgan Securities Inc.|

Indemnification Agreement between Willdan Groups.land Linda Heil(1

Agreement and General Release between Willdan Ginapand Richard Kopecky effective February 2002(2)
Settlement Agreement among the City of West Hollgdi,dVilldan and Willdan Group, Inc., effective Mar6, 2007(3’
Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Inel @homas D. Brishin dated April 2, 2007

Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ina Brallory McCamant dated July 23, 2007

Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Inel Emmberly D. Gant dated July 23, 2007

Code of Ethical Conduct of Willdan Group, Inc.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Filed herewith.
Indicates a management contract or compensatimggplarrangement.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InRé&gistration Statement on Form S-1, filed with 8®seurities and Exchange
Commission on August 9, 2006, as amended (File388:136444).

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
February 22, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
March 12, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
March 27, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
January 2, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€(srent Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Sedaestand Exchange Commission
on March 27, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.(srent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
April 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
July 26, 2007.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Willdan Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe registration statement (No. 333-139127Fom S-8 of Willdan Group, Inc. of our
report dated March 25, 2008, with respect to thesobdated balance sheets of Willdan Group, Inafd3ecember 28, 2007 and
December 29, 2006, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, redeemable common stoclstactholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the fiscal years in the three-yearqubended December 28, 2007, which report appedheibecember 28, 2007 annual report on
Form 10-K of Willdan Group, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 25, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE R
I, Thomas D. Brishin, Chief Executive Oficof Willdan Group, Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K\didan Group, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered liy éinnual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$osimer financial information included in this aahuveport, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itsmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this annual
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimtinual report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in #yistrant's internal control over financial repogtihat occurred durir
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (tlgésteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofanual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiornierhal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl ¢he audit committee of registrant's board oéatiors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesssethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 26, 2008

By: /s/ THOMAS D. BRISBIN

Thomas D. Brisbin
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE R
I, Kimberly D. Gant, Chief Financial Officef Willdan Group, Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K\didan Group, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered liy éinnual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$osimer financial information included in this aahuveport, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itsmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this annual
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimtinual report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in #yistrant's internal control over financial repogtihat occurred durir
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (tlgésteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofanual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiornierhal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl ¢he audit committee of registrant's board oéatiors (or persons performing
the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesssethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 26, 2008

By: /s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Financial Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxl&ct of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report onfdk0-K of Willdan Group, Inc. (the "Company") fdre annual period ended December 28,
2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), ThomaBiishin, as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Kimberly Dar, as Chief Financial Officer and Senior Viceditent of the Company, each hereby
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of22@fat, to the best of his or her
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

By: /s/ THOMAS D. BRISBIN

Thomas D. Brishin
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 26, 200¢

By: /s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
March 26, 200¢

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to § 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the aktequirec
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed Eilethe Company for purposes of § 18 of the Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as
amended. A signed original of this written statetmequired by 8§ 906 has been provided to the Compad will be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon request.
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